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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

11:00 a.m.: 

EX/AMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e ' l l c a l l the hearing 

back t o order. 

At t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l Case Number 12,956, 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Great Western D r i l l i n g Company f o r 

compulsory p o o l i n g , Lea County, New Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. OWEN: Paul Owen of the Santa Fe law f i r m of 

Montgomery and Andrews, appearing on behalf of Great 

Western D r i l l i n g Company. 

MR. FELDEWERT: May i t please the Examiner of the 

law f i r m of Holland and Hart. I'm here on behalf of David 

H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., who i s the A p p l i c a n t i n 

Case 12,942. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Now, do you a l l have any 

witnesses? 

MR. OWEN: Yes, Mr. Examiner, I have two 

witnesses i n t h i s matter. 

And I — moving on the t a i l of Mr. Feldewert, I 

do p o i n t out t h a t i t ' s my understanding t h a t a t the 

conclusion of the October 10th, 2002, hearing you 

consolidated Case Number 12,942 w i t h t h i s case and 

continued i t t i l l today. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: I don't r e c a l l , and I don't 

have the t r a n s c r i p t here i n f r o n t of me, so — as t o 

whether I a c t u a l l y d i d consolidate i t or not. 

My i n t e n t i o n was t o consolidate i t and issue a 

s i n g l e order, since as I understand i t the g r a n t i n g of 

e i t h e r A p p l i c a t i o n would preclude the g r a n t i n g of the 

other. 

And so i f I have not done so, a t t h i s time we 

w i l l c o n s o l i d a t e Cases Numbers 12,942 and 12,956, and i t ' s 

contemplate t h a t a s i n g l e order w i l l be entered disposing 

of both cases. 

I b e l i e v e t h a t the e v i d e n t i a r y p r e s e n t a t i o n i n 

12,942 was made a t the previous hearing; i s t h a t c o r r e c t , 

Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's c o r r e c t , Mr. Examiner. I 

do not have a witness here today, and I don't know whether 

we're going t o have any e v i d e n t i a r y p r e s e n t a t i o n here 

today. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Mr. Owen, would you 

have your witnesses stand t o be sworn, please? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, as the A p p l i c a n t i n Case 

Number 12,956 you may proceed, Mr. Owen. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. I c a l l Mr. 

Mike Heathington. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MICHAEL S. HEATHINGTON, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Would you please t e l l us your f u l l name and where 

you l i v e ? 

A. My name i s Mike Heathington. I r e s i d e i n 

Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. I work f o r Great Western D r i l l i n g Company. 

Q. And what do you do f o r Great Western? 

A. I'm the land manager f o r Great Western. 

Q. Have you pr e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. At the time of t h a t testimony were your 

c r e d e n t i a l s as a petroleum landman accepted and made a 

matter of record? 

A. Yes, I bel i e v e they were. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands i n the sub j e c t 

area? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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A. Yes, I am. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, are the witness's 

q u a l i f i c a t i o n s acceptable? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: The witness i s q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) Mr. Heathington, are you aware 

t h a t David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., has sought t o 

have the same lands pooled and dedicated t o a s i m i l a r w e l l 

w i t h A r r i n g t o n t o be named as operator? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n has 

been assigned Case Number 12,942 and was heard by the 

D i v i s i o n on October 10th, 2002? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were you present a t the time of t h a t testimony? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Since t h a t hearing, have you reviewed the 

e x h i b i t s o f f e r e d by A r r i n g t o n i n the October 10th hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you also reviewed the t r a n s c r i p t from t h a t 

hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does Great Western seek a d i f f e r e n t w e l l l o c a t i o n 

than t h a t discussed by A r r i n g t o n i n Case Number 12,942 a t 

the October 10th hearing? 

A. No, we're i n agreement w i t h the l o c a t i o n , but we 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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do seek a d i f f e r e n t w e l l name. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We'd l i k e t o c a l l i t the Lovington Federal Number 

1. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And does Great Western propose t o 

d r i l l t o a d i f f e r e n t formation or horizon than t h a t 

proposed by Arrington? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. Okay. Are you prepared t o e x p l a i n why Great 

Western should be designated the operator of the subject 

w e l l , i n stead of Arrington? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why don't you give us a b r i e f 

statement about what Great Western seeks w i t h t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Great Western seeks an order p o o l i n g a l l of the 

mineral i n t e r e s t u n d e rlying the east h a l f of the n o r t h two-

t h i r d s of Section 1 i n Township 16 South, Range 34 East, of 

Lea County, New Mexico, i n the f o l l o w i n g manner: 

We seek t o pool a l l formations and/or pools 

developed on a 320-acre spacing w i t h i n t h a t v e r t i c a l 

e x t e n t , i n c l u d i n g but not l i m i t e d t o the Undesignated 

Townsend-Morrow Gas Pool; 

We also seek a l l formations developed on 160-acre 

spacing u n d e r l y i n g the northeast quarter of s a i d Section 1; 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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A l l formations developed on 80-acre spacing 

u n d e r l y i n g the east h a l f , northeast q u a r t e r ; 

And a l l formations developed on 40-acre spacing 

u n d e r l y i n g the northeast northeast qua r t e r . 

Such spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t s are t o be 

dedicated t o Great Western's proposed Lovington Federal 

Number 1 w e l l , t o be d r i l l e d a t a standard l o c a t i o n i n the 

northeast quarter of Section 1. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why don't we go ahead and t u r n t o 

Great Western E x h i b i t Number 1? Could you please e x p l a i n 

t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. What t h a t e x h i b i t i s , i s an o u t l i n e of the 

proposed 328-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t t h a t we seek t o pool here. 

This s e c t i o n i s an i r r e g u l a r s e c t i o n t h a t i s composed of 

s p e c i f i c e i g h t l o t s , described more s p e c i f i c a l l y as Lots 1, 

2, 7, 8, 10, 15 and 16, or i t could be described — i n some 

of our f i l e s we have a d e s c r i p t i o n of the east h a l f of the 

n o r t h t w o - t h i r d s of Section 1, Township 16 South, Range 34 

East. I t encompasses 328.34 t o t a l acres. I t i s a f e d e r a l 

o i l and gas lease. 

Q. And does t h i s e x h i b i t i n d i c a t e the proposed w e l l 

l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t does. I t also shows the — the dot, t h a t 

we would l i k e t o d r i l l . 

Q. I s t h a t the same w e l l l o c a t i o n t h a t was discussed 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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by A r r i n g t o n i n the October 10th, 2002, hearing? 

A. Yes, i t i s . We've since had our pr o d u c t i o n 

foreman b a s i c a l l y go out and look a t t h a t , and we t h i n k i t 

i s acceptable f o r g e o l o g i c a l reasons and surface reasons. 

Q. Okay, what's the primary o b j e c t i v e of the 

proposed well? 

A. I t ' s a dual primary o b j e c t i v e of the Atoka and 

the Morrow. 

Q. I s t h a t i n the Undesignated Townsend-Morrow Gas 

Pool? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

2. Could you please review t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. This i s an e x h i b i t t h a t shows the represented 

ownership of the p a r t i e s . This i s also a p a r t of our j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t we have prepared and sent t o a l l 

p a r t i e s . I t shows, l i k e I said, the represented ownership 

t o be Great Western, 32.238 percent; D a v o i l , I n c . , 17.762 

percent; and David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, 50 percent. 

We would l i k e t o discuss t h i s ownership i n a l i t t l e more 

d e t a i l a t a l a t e r time i n t h i s testimony? 

Q. Do we, i n f a c t , have a couple of assignments 

d e a l i n g w i t h A r r i n g t o n t h a t we're going t o discuss i n a 

l i t t l e b i t ? 

A. Yes. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . And what percentage of the acreage i s 

v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the w e l l , naming — w i t h Great 

Western as the operator? 

A. We have vo l u n t a r y commitments from 50 percent of 

t h i s p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. How many owners does t h a t represent? 

A. That represents two out of the t h r e e owners 

in v o l v e d i n t h i s proposed p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

Q. Would t h a t be Davoil and Great Western? 

A. That i s Davoil and Great Western D r i l l i n g 

Company. 

Q. Okay. How i s Davoil committed, and how i s Great 

Western committed t o Great Western's proposal? 

A. Great Western, l i k e I s a i d , f o r m a l l y proposed a 

proposed j o i n t operating agreement t o a l l p a r t i e s , and we 

have received the signatory j o i n d e r , v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r , of 

D a v o i l , I n c . , t o our proposed AFE and t o our j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. Now, i s t h a t proposed j o i n t o p e rating agreement 

comprising Great Western E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. Yes, I believe i t i s . 

Q. Why don't you review t h a t e x h i b i t f o r the 

Examiner, please? The JOA? 

A. The JOA? Well, i t ' s a Model Form 610, 1989 model 

form j o i n t operating agreement. I t covers the lands we've 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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discussed, and b a s i c a l l y i t ' s been — You know, i t 

b a s i c a l l y does not have a l o t of ex t r a p r o v i s i o n s a t a l l t o 

the model form. We l i k e t o keep i t p r e t t y simple of what 

7AAPL has recommended. I t covers a l l matters of operations 

and l i a b i l i t i e s and b i l l i n g s of the p a r t i e s t o t h i s 

proposed operation. 

Q. Now, i n the back couple pages of t h a t e x h i b i t are 

some signa t u r e pages. What do those si g n a t u r e pages 

i n d i c a t e ? 

A. B a s i c a l l y t h a t Davoil, I nc., has v o l u n t a r i l y 

j o i n e d i n t h i s proposed j o i n t operating agreement. 

Q. Okay. Does t h a t JOA t r e a t loss of t i t l e ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Does i t t r e a t subsequent operations? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Does i t t r e a t removal of the operator? 

A. I t t r e a t s t h a t issue. 

Q. Does i t t r e a t l i a b i l i t i e s between the p a r t i e s t o 

the JOA? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Does i t t r e a t reworking and plugging back of 

wells? 

A. I t addresses t h a t . 

Q. Does i t t r e a t t e r m i n a t i o n of the operations on 

the land? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Does i t t r e a t j o i n t accounting? 

A. I t t r e a t s a l l j o i n t i n t e r e s t accounting matters. 

Q. Okay. Have you seen any compulsory p o o l i n g 

orders from t h i s D i v i s i o n ? Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the 

t y p i c a l compulsory poo l i n g order from t h i s D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Do those orders t r e a t subsequent operations? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Do they t r e a t j o i n t accounting? 

A. No, I don't b e l i e v e they do. 

Q. Do they t r e a t l i a b i l i t i e s between the p a r t i e s ? 

A. I don't believe they do, no. 

Q. Do they t r e a t f a i l u r e of t i t l e ? 

A. No. 

Q. Do they t r e a t plugging back and reworking wells? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

4. Can you please t e l l us what t h a t e x h i b i t is? Mr. 

Heathington, i t might help i f you take the b u t t e r f l y c l i p 

o f f . 

A. Okay. Lots of paper here. Yes, E x h i b i t Number 4 

i s our AFE t o t h i s proposed w e l l . 

Q. What w e l l l o c a t i o n were you proposing w i t h t h i s 

AFE? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. This AFE was the o r i g i n a l proposal t h a t we made 

p r i o r t o di s c o v e r i n g t h a t we had some surface — p r i o r t o 

i t being discovered t h a t we had some surface issues out 

here. We o r i g i n a l l y proposed a 12 00 f e e t from the n o r t h 

l i n e and 1335 from the east l i n e of Section 1 l o c a t i o n f o r 

t h i s w e l l , and t h a t was done i n September sometime. 

Q. Was t h a t September 30th, 2002? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was a l i t t l e e a r l i e r than t h a t . 

Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , September 30th. 

Q. That's when you sent i t t o the other i n t e r e s t 

owners? 

A. That's when a l l i n t e r e s t owners received t h i s 

w e l l proposal. 

Q. I n c l u d i n g Davoil and Arrington? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Then l e t ' s t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t 

Number 5. Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. That i s an amended AFE t h a t was prepared a f t e r 

d i s c o v e r i n g the surface issues f o r the f i r s t l o c a t i o n , and 

i t shows a r e v i s e d l o c a t i o n of 1200 f e e t from the n o r t h 

l i n e and 1665 from the east l i n e . 

Q. So you moved the proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n 300 f e e t 

t o the west? 

A. Yes, t o accommodate features on the surface t h a t 

probably would be expensive t o b u i l d a l o c a t i o n on. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. When d i d you submit t h i s AFE t o the other 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the well? 

A. This was resubmitted as an amended AFE on October 

21st, 2002. 

Q. October 21st? 

A. Yes, October 21st. 

Q. Okay. Why d i d you submit t h i s second AFE? 

A. Well, b a s i c a l l y anytime you have a r e v i s e d 

proposal, when there's a change of l o c a t i o n a r e v i s e d AFE 

needs t o be proposed showing the c o r r e c t w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

6. Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. That i s David A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas's AFE f o r the 

proposed w e l l . 

Q. Okay. What w e l l l o c a t i o n does t h i s AFE i n d i c a t e ? 

A. I t shows the 1200 f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 

1665 from the east l i n e of Section 1 w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

Q. I s t h a t the l o c a t i o n which A r r i n g t o n requested 

d u r i n g the October 10th, 2002, hearing? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Was t h i s AFE w i t h the 1665 l o c a t i o n ever sent t o 

you? 

A. This AFE has never been submitted t o Great 

Western, or Davoil t o my knowledge. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does E x h i b i t Number 5, Great 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Western's amended AFE, and Great Western's E x h i b i t Number 

4, the o r i g i n a l AFE, do those AFEs r e f l e c t Great Western's 

estimate of overhead and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs w h i l e 

d r i l l i n g and operating the well? 

A. Those are r e f l e c t e d i n our j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. I n the JOA? 

A. For the most p a r t , yes. 

Q. And was t h a t JOA submitted t o both Davoil and 

Arrington? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What are the proposed estimated overhead and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs? 

A. We seek a d r i l l i n g w e l l overhead cost of $6000 

per month and a producing w e l l overhead r a t e of $600 per 

month. 

Q. Have you ever received a proposed JOA from 

Arrington? 

A. No, we haven't. 

Q. Have you ever received any proposed overhead and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs from Arrington? 

A. None t h a t I'm aware of. 

Q. Okay. Are the costs t h a t Great Western proposes 

i n i t s JOA i n l i n e w i t h what's being charged by other 

operators i n t h i s area? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

18 

A. Yes, I believe they are. 

Q. Do you recommend t h a t those f i g u r e s be 

inc o r p o r a t e d i n t o any order t h a t r e s u l t s from t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes, I would. 

Q. Looking back at E x h i b i t Number 5, what's the 

t o t a l f o r — Great Western's t o t a l f o r a completed w e l l ? 

A. A t o t a l completed w e l l cost we estimate t o be 

$1,503,200,. 

Q. What's the estimated dryhole cost? 

A. The estimated dryhole cost i s $950,700. 

Q. And the estimated completion cost? 

A. The completed w e l l cost i s $552,500. 

Q. And t h a t r e s u l t s i n the $ 1 . 5 - m i l l i o n f i g u r e 

you've indicated? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Are those costs i n l i n e w i t h what's been charged 

by other operators i n the area f o r s i m i l a r wells? 

A. We b e l i e v e them t o be very c o m p e t i t i v e estimated 

cost. 

Q. Are they i n l i n e w i t h the AFE and the f i g u r e s 

r e f l e c t e d on the AFE t h a t A r r i n g t o n proposed d u r i n g the 

October 10th, 2 002, hearing? 

A. They're i n l i n e . The comparison i s , our 

estimated dryhole cost i s $60,000 less than the AFE 

proposed by A r r i n g t o n , w i t h h i s completion-cost estimate 
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being $26,000 less than our estimated completion cost. 

Q. Okay, what's the — I s there a s i g n i f i c a n t 

d i f f e r e n c e between the completed w e l l costs? 

A. The t o t a l completed w e l l cost, the estimated 

d i f f e r e n c e i s $34,000. 

Q. Who proposes t o charge more? 

A. A r r i n g t o n ' s estimate i s higher. 

Q. Do you consider t h a t a s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n 

l i g h t of the $1.5 m i l l i o n ? 

A. I n a w e l l l i k e t h i s , no, I do not consider i t a 

s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e . 

Q. Okay. Now, I want you t o — A f t e r t a l k i n g about 

E x h i b i t Number 6, Arrington's AFE, I want t o ask you about 

Great Western's involvement w i t h any other w e l l s operated 

by A r r i n g t o n . Has Great Western ever been i n v o l v e d i n any 

other w e l l s operated by Arrington? 

A. We've been involved w i t h f o u r other w e l l s as a 

nonoperator where A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas has been the 

operator. 

Q. Okay. I n those w e l l s , how d i d A r r i n g t o n ' s a c t u a l 

expenditures compare t o t h e i r estimated expenditures, as 

r e f l e c t e d by t h e i r AFEs i n those wells? 

A. The average — I'm going t o give the s p e c i f i c s 

here, but b a s i c a l l y we were i n four w e l l s . One of them was 

c a l l e d the Beet Head Hare's Ear Number 41. A r r i n g t o n O i l 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

and Gas was two percent under i t s estimated AFE cost. I n 

the Beet Head Emerger Number 65 w e l l he was 2 3 percent over 

h i s AFE cost. I n the Beet Head Scud Number 53 w e l l he was 

109 percent over h i s AFE estimated cost. I n the Beet Head 

Stone Fly 41 w e l l he was 185 percent over h i s estimated AFE 

cost. And these were shallow, 6000-foot, p r e t t y much 

bread-and-butter w e l l s on the eastern s h e l f of the Permian 

Basin. 

Q. I n l i g h t of t h a t , how accurate do you t h i n k t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n ' s estimated w e l l costs as r e f l e c t e d on t h e i r AFE 

are? 

A. Based on our past experience, we have t o r e a l l y 

wonder. 

Q. Okay. Now, the d i f f e r e n c e between Great 

Western's E x h i b i t Number 4 and Great Western's E x h i b i t 

Number 5 has t o do w i t h the moving of the w e l l l o c a t i o n ; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. I t h i n k you i n d i c a t e d you were present 

d u r i n g the October 10th hearing; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you hear Mr. Dale Douglas represent t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n had reached agreement w i t h the surface owner f o r 

t h i s w e l l ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l whether he d i d or not. I don't 
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r e a l l y r e c a l l t h a t s p e c i f i c a l l y . There was testimony about 

them s t a k i n g the w e l l , and p o s s i b l y t a l k i n g t o the surface 

owner, I b e l i e v e , yes. 

Q. Okay. Do you remember whether or not counsel f o r 

Mr. A r r i n g t o n represented t h a t agreement had been reached 

w i t h the surface owner? 

A. I t could be possibl e , I don't remember 

s p e c i f i c a l l y . 

Q. Have you spoken w i t h the surface owner? 

A. We have had contact w i t h the surface owner. To 

our knowledge, as of about two weeks ago, there's been no 

contact from A r r i n g t o n regarding o b t a i n i n g access t o the 

l o c a t i o n and s e t t l i n g damages. He had not — We do know 

damages have not been s e t t l e d . 

Q. Did you discuss damage settlement, surface damage 

settlement, i n the event t h a t Great Western i s named as 

operator? 

A. Yes, we have. We entered i n t o t e n t a t i v e 

n e g o t i a t i o n s subject t o the outcome of t h i s order t o o b t a i n 

an agreement t o enter the property and get t h i s w e l l 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. Did t h a t surface owner i n d i c a t e t h a t he would not 

enter i n t o an agreement w i t h Great Western? 

A. No, not a t a l l . 

Q. Have you obtained a permit from the BLM t o d r i l l 
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t h i s well? 

A. No, we haven't. We understand on October 21st 

A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas d i d receive a f e d e r a l permit on t h i s 

w e l l . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the process r e q u i r e d f o r 

t r a n s f e r r i n g t h a t permit t o Great Western as the operator? 

A. As I understand, t h a t ' s done by some type of 

sundry n o t i c e , p r e t t y simple procedure. 

Q. I s Great Western going t o be r e q u i r e d t o submit a 

separate a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a permit? 

A. Not t o my knowledge, no. 

Q. Okay, and i s Great Western going t o be r e q u i r e d 

t o conduct an archaeological survey? 

A. As I understand i t , t h a t w i l l not have t o be done 

again. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s move on a l i t t l e b i t . I want t o take 

a look a t A r r i n g t o n E x h i b i t — Well, a c t u a l l y , l e t ' s t a l k a 

l i t t l e b i t about your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the other p a r t i e s 

i n the case. Can you summarize f o r me the e f f o r t s made t o 

o b t a i n the j o i n d e r of a l l the working i n t e r e s t owners i n 

t h i s proposed spacing u n i t ? 

A. Well, as we have s t a t e d , we obtained v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n e r of two of the three owners i n t h i s proposed 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t . We've also attempted as of l a s t Friday — 

we d i d put a c a l l i n t o Dale Douglas of A r r i n g t o n O i l and 
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Gas i n an attempt t o s e t t l e the issues i n v o l v e d i n these 

A p p l i c a t i o n s , and we propose a couple of d i f f e r e n t ways 

t h a t we might go forward without c o n t i n u i n g t h i s process 

here, which were r e j e c t e d by A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas. 

Q. Who advanced those proposals i n an e f f o r t t o get 

vo l u n t a r y j o i n d e r ? 

A. Those were advanced by Great Western's 

management. 

Q. Has A r r i n g t o n contacted you t o t r y t o get 

j o i n d e r , get Great Western's j o i n d e r i n t h i s w e l l ? 

A. No. 

Q. Now, A r r i n g t o n d i d propose the w e l l t o Great 

Western; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They proposed t h a t through an AFE? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have they proposed i t any other way? 

A. No. 

Q. They d i d n ' t give you a JOA, d i d they? 

A. We have not seen a proposed j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We have not seen an a c t u a l w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

0_. I n your opinion, have you made a g o o d - f a i t h 

e f f o r t t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of David H. 
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A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc.? 

A. I bel i e v e we have. 

Q. Okay. And what e f f o r t s has A r r i n g t o n made t o 

o b t a i n Great Western's joinder? 

A. None t o my knowledge. 

Q. Well, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t Number 7, Great 

Western's E x h i b i t Number 7. What i s t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. Well, t h a t ' s where he d i d send out an AFE showing 

the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n , t h a t was amended t h e r e a f t e r . That's 

where he o r i g i n a l l y proposed a w e l l , by AFE only. 

Q. What was amended? 

A. The a c t u a l d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n has been moved. 

Q. Has A r r i n g t o n proposed the — moved the new 

lo c a t i o n ? 

A. We have not seen the amended AFE proposals, no. 

Q. Okay. Have there been any other contacts from 

A r r i n g t o n t o Great Western w i t h regard t o t h i s case? 

A. No. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, you i n d i c a t e d a t the outset of 

t h i s case t h a t we had some assignments you wanted t o t a l k 

about. I want you t o take a look a t Great Western E x h i b i t 

Number 8. Can you t e l l me what t h a t is? 

A. Okay, t h a t i s a term assignment from Hunt O i l 

Company covering about — roughly 3 5 percent of the 

oper a t i n g r i g h t s on t h i s f e d e r a l lease, t h a t was made t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

25 

Dale Douglas i n Midland, Texas. 

Q. What's the date of t h a t assignment? 

A. I t h i n k i t was e f f e c t i v e March 1. March 1 of 

2001. 

Q. What's Mr. Douglas's a s s o c i a t i o n w i t h David H. 

A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc.? 

A. I t h i n k he i s t h e i r land c o n s u l t a n t . 

Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t , now I want you t o — Does t h i s 

lease cover the acreage t h a t ' s involved i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Or t h i s term assignment, pardon me? 

A. Yes, i t does. I t covers an i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

acreage, yes. 

Q. Okay, I want you t o t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t 

Number 8a. Can you t e l l me what t h a t e x h i b i t is? 

A. That i s an instrument where Mr. Douglas assigned 

t o David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas a l l of h i s r i g h t , t i t l e 

and i n t e r e s t acquired i n the term assignment we j u s t 

mentioned. 

Q. When was t h a t signed? 

A. That was signed, according t o the notary, on the 

4th of October, 2002. I t ' s our understanding i t was f i l e d 

i n the county records l a t e yesterday afternoon. 

Q. I n f a c t , on the second page of t h a t e x h i b i t i s 

the r e a recording stamp? 
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A. Yes, there is. 

Q. And what does t h a t recording stamp --

A. I t was f i l e d on November 13th, 2002. 

Q. Okay. Does t h i s assignment assign the same 

i n t e r e s t s t h a t were covered i n Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

8? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. I want you t o t u r n t o Great Western 

E x h i b i t Number 9. Can you t e l l me what t h a t i s ? 

A. That i s a l e t t e r i n favor of David H. A r r i n g t o n 

O i l and Gas, a farmout-agreement l e t t e r , from Tom Brown, 

I n c . , who owns 14 percent, approximately 14 percent of the 

oper a t i n g r i g h t s on the f e d e r a l lease covered by t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. What's the date of t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. September 27th, 2002. 

Q. And what i s — Does t h a t l e t t e r agreement and the 

farmout cover any of the acreage involved i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, i t does, roughly 14 percent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I want you t o t u r n t o Great Western 

E x h i b i t Number 9a. Can you t e l l me what t h a t i s ? 

A. That i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l 

and Gas f o r p o o l i n g of the i n t e r e s t i n t h i s acreage we're 

t a l k i n g about. 

Q. Okay. And on the upper rig h t - h a n d corner there's 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

27 

a sideways stamp, a f i l e stamp. Can you t e l l me what the 

date of t h a t stamp is? 

A. Yes, t h a t — Does t h a t say September 18th? 

Q. I don't know, t h a t ' s why I'm asking. 

A. I be l i e v e i t says September 18th, 2002, when t h a t 

was f i l e d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . On the bottom of t h a t f i r s t page 

there's a statement w i t h a number 1. Can you read t h a t 

statement please? 

A. Number 1 represents — i t says " A r r i n g t o n i s a 

working i n t e r e s t owner i n the E/2 of i r r e g u l a r Section 1 

and has the r i g h t t o d r i l l thereon." 

Q. When d i d A r r i n g t o n acquire i t s i n t e r e s t s from 

Dale Douglas? 

A. Apparently October 4th, 2002, and i t was recorded 

of record i n Lea County on November 13th, 2002. 

Q. When d i d A r r i n g t o n acquire i t s i n t e r e s t s from Tom 

Brown, Inc.? 

A. According t o t h i s paperwork, on September 27th, 

2002 . 

Q. At the time t h a t t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , d i d 

A r r i n g t o n own any i n t e r e s t i n t h i s acreage? 

A. Not from the paperwork of record and what's been 

fu r n i s h e d . 

Q. Has Great Western undertaken a search of the Lea 
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County records? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Has Great Western — As a r e s u l t of t h a t search, 

have any other assignments or conveyances i n t o David H. 

A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas of t h i s acreage been uncovered? 

A. There's a c t u a l l y nothing of record, other than 

the assignment t h a t was f i l e d yesterday afternoon. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Heathington, i s Great Western 

E x h i b i t Number 10 an a f f i d a v i t from myself i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

n o t i c e of t h i s hearing was given t o David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l 

and Gas, Inc.? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Does Great Western seek t o be designated operator 

of the proposed well? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now I want t o ask you the m i l l i o n -

d o l l a r question i n t h i s case, Mr. Heathington. Why does 

Great Western obj e c t t o Arri n g t o n ' s operation of t h i s w e ll? 

A. Well, we have p r e v i o u s l y discussed our d i r e c t 

experience w i t h A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas as an operator i n 

King County, Texas, and based on t h a t experience and the 

a c t u a l cost overruns and other o p e r a t i o n a l f a c t o r s t h a t we 

have experienced, Great Western has a s i g n i f i c a n t concern 

whether or no A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas has the personnel on 

s t a f f and the a b i l i t y t o pr o p e r l y d r i l l , complete and 
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produce a w e l l of t h i s magnitude. 

And based on the experience on these f o u r w e l l s 

i n King County, we believe t h a t A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas 

creates s i g n i f i c a n t unnecessary j o i n t account expense by 

u t i l i z i n g expensive consultants f o r numerous engineering, 

g e o l o g i c a l and land f u n c t i o n s t h a t most operators cover 

under the normal overhead p r o v i s i o n s of a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. They have the in-house s t a f f not t o b i l l these 

people out d i r e c t l y as a d i r e c t cost t o the j o i n t account. 

Q. You mean most other operators have those s t a f f ? 

A. Most operators w i t h any k i n d of r e a l i s t i c s t a f f 

do not b i l l those k i n d of fees t o the j o i n t account. 

Q. Does Arrington? 

A. A r r i n g t o n has, yes. 

Q. Okay. 

A. He has e x t e n s i v e l y . 

We b e l i e v e t h a t A r r i n g t o n has f a i l e d t o comply 

w i t h a j o i n t operating agreement i n King County by not 

a l l o w i n g Great Western D r i l l i n g Company access t o t h a t 

j o i n t account when we had questions about h i s cost overruns 

and extensive use of consultants. I n f a c t , we were forced 

i n our great reluctance t o f i l e a l a w s u i t , j u s t t o t r y t o 

complete a normal j o i n t i n t e r e s t a u d i t of those p a r t i c u l a r 

w e l l s . And even a f t e r the l a w s u i t was f i l e d , Great Western 

was continued — was s t i l l not allowed enough access t o the 
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records of those w e l l s t o complete an a u d i t of those w e l l s . 

Q. I s there any r i g h t of access under the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. You bet, I mean, there's express — I mean, 

t h a t ' s j u s t a normal t h i n g t o — you know, normally t o be 

able t o a u d i t the j o i n t account. 

Q. Does Great Western view A r r i n g t o n ' s r e f u s a l t o 

allow access t o the j o i n t accounts as a f a i l u r e t o comply 

w i t h the j o i n t operating agreement? 

A. Without question. 

Q. Are there any other instances of which you're 

aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n has f a i l e d t o comply w i t h a j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r , there i s . I mean, the r e were a couple 

of other s i g n i f i c a n t instances i n the King County process 

where the operating agreement was not complied w i t h , i n our 

opi n i o n . A w e l l was plugged, t h a t we had an i n t e r e s t i n as 

a nonoperator, w i t h o u t any k i n d of n o t i f i c a t i o n . I t was a 

producing w e l l t h a t was j u s t plugged w i t h o u t n o t i f i c a t i o n 

t o us, t o allow us, you know, t o e i t h e r take the w e l l over 

or continue producing i t . 

Q. Was there n o t i f i c a t i o n r e q u i r e d i n the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Yes, there i s . We also t h i n k A r r i n g t o n f a i l e d t o 

comply w i t h the operating agreement. We had a s p e c i a l i n 
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t h i s p a r t i c u l a r deal t h a t anytime cost overruns exceeded 20 

percent of a proposed completion or d r i l l i n g o p e r a t i o n , he 

was r e q u i r e d t o n o t i f y the nonoperators, and we were 

e n t i t l e d t o an a d d i t i o n a l e l e c t i o n a t t h a t p o i n t of whether 

or not we wanted t o continue w i t h t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

o p e r a t i o n . When only two of the four w e l l s were d r i l l e d , 

he was d e f i n i t e l y over — 20 percent over the cap t h a t was 

s p e l l e d out i n the operating agreement. We received no 

n o t i c e , we j u s t continued ahead w i t h those t h i n g s and spent 

a l o t of money t h a t we may not have el e c t e d t o do. 

We have serious r e s e r v a t i o n s about the in-house 

s t a f f and h i s w i l l i n g n e s s t o comply w i t h the terms of the 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement we had i n t h a t case. We do know 

t h a t he can use consultants e x t e n s i v e l y and deny access t o 

the j o i n t account. But other than t h a t , we do have 

r e s e r v a t i o n s about him operating. 

Q. You've i n d i c a t e d some t h i n g s t h a t Great Western 

t h i n k s are i n noncompliance w i t h the j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. Do those f a c t o r s — or those f a c t s , have 

anything t o do w i t h your opinion about whether A r r i n g t o n 

can p r u d e n t l y operate the acreage i n t h i s case? 

A. Based on our d i r e c t experience of them, they 

c e r t a i n l y have something t o do w i t h t h a t . 

Q. And what i s your opinion about whether A r r i n g t o n 

w i l l be a prudent operator of the acreage i n t h i s case? 
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A. We t h i n k there's some r e a l questions t h e r e 

because of the l i m i t e d s t a f f t h a t he has, l i m i t e d f i e l d 

o f f i c e s t a f f , and the excessive use of cons u l t a n t s i n 

d r i l l i n g w e l l s . 

Q. Do you t h i n k t h a t A r r i n g t o n w i l l be a prudent 

operator of the acreage i n t h i s case? 

A. I n t h i s case, we t h i n k Great Western would be the 

more appropriate operator. 

Q. How long have you been i n the o i l and gas 

business, Mr. Heathington? 

A. Twenty years. 

Q. How many w e l l s have you been i n v o l v e d i n , 

i n d i r e c t l y or d i r e c t l y , through your employer. 

A. Probably close t o a thousand. 

Q. I n the course of t h a t experience have you 

developed an understanding of what a prudent operator i s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e I have. 

Q. I n your opinion, i s A r r i n g t o n a prudent operator? 

A. Based on our experience, we don't b e l i e v e him t o 

be so. 

Q. Why should Great Western be designated the 

operator instead of Arrington? 

A. Well, Great Western i s an experienced and capable 

operator of a w e l l — To me, we are an experienced and 

capable operator of a w e l l i n t h i s t r e n d or any other t r e n d 
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t h a t might be involved i n the Permian Basin operations. 

Two out of the three i n t e r e s t owners i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t d esire Great Western t o operate. Great 

Western has d r i l l e d one of the o r i g i n a l discovery w e l l s i n 

the Townsend t r e n d i n the 1970s. Great Western has a f i e l d 

o f f i c e i n Lovington — 

Q. Let me ask you about t h a t w e l l i n the 1970s. I s 

t h a t w e l l s t i l l i n operation? 

A. That w e l l i s s t i l l producing, very p r o l i f i c w e l l . 

Q. I s i t from the same horizon as the proposed w e l l 

i n t h i s case? 

A. I t i s from one of the primary o b j e c t i v e s , yes. 

Q. I s Great Western s t i l l the operator of t h a t well? 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. Has Great Western been the operator continuously 

since the d r i l l i n g of t h a t well? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Have you ever had any complaints from the other 

i n t e r e s t owners i n t h a t well? 

A. No, s i r , we have not. 

Q. Have you ever been accused of imprudent 

operations by the other i n t e r e s t owners i n t h a t w e l l ? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , I i n t e r r u p t e d you. You were t a l k i n g 

about your f i e l d personnel, I believe? 
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A. I t h i n k i t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t p o i n t i n c o n s i d e r i n g 

which p a r t y needs t o operate t h i s . Great Western does have 

a f i e l d o f f i c e located 10 miles from t h i s proposed 

l o c a t i o n . We have a d r i l l i n g superintendent t h a t would be 

su p e r v i s i n g a l l operations of a w e l l , i f we are designated 

the operator, t h a t has over 30 years' experience i n 

d r i l l i n g w e l l s i n the Permian Basin. We have pr o d u c t i o n 

foremen out of t h a t Lovington O f f i c e , so we would not have 

t o use consultants i n the operation of t h i s w e l l . 

Q. Let me ask you about t h a t . You i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n b i l l s consultants and other operators don't. 

What e f f e c t does t h a t have on the operation of the well? 

A. Well, I don't want t o say t h a t other operators 

don't ever use consultants. Consultants are used. I t ' s 

the — Most companies w i t h reasonable s t a f f s u t i l i z e t h e i r 

engineers and t h e i r g e o l o g i s t s a t a considerably reduced 

cost, t y p i c a l l y , than, you know, cons u l t a n t s , c o n s u l t a n t s 

t h a t have t o be used f o r every f u n c t i o n . And when you use 

consultants not only i n the d r i l l i n g and completion of a 

w e l l but i n the operation — the production of a w e l l , you 

can considerably run up the cost of the j o i n t account. 

Q. I n your opinion, does t h a t have any r e f l e c t i o n on 

the accuracy of Arri n g t o n ' s estimated cost f o r d r i l l i n g and 

producing the well? 

A. I t could, yes. 
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Q. What e f f e c t would t h a t be? 

A. I t could increase i t . 

Q. Okay. I i n t e r r u p t e d you when you were t a l k i n g 

about these outside consultants. 

A. Well, what I was wanting t o add, besides our — 

you know, l i k e I said, t o my knowledge A r r i n g t o n O i l and 

Gas has no such f i e l d o f f i c e located t h i s close t o the 

prop e r t y . 

Great Western also has the in-house engineering 

e x p e r t i s e , w i t h o u t having t o use some of these c o n s u l t a n t s , 

whereas A r r i n g t o n , we be l i e v e , would make extensive use of 

engineering, g e o l o g i c a l and land consultants. We c e r t a i n l y 

would provide our partners access t o any j o i n t account 

questions t h a t they may have concerning any of the b i l l s or 

the operations t h a t we may do on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . We 

would provide t o t a l access t o those records. 

I n our opinion — You know, we l i k e t o t r e a t our 

nonoperators l i k e we l i k e t o be t r e a t e d as a nonoperator. 

I n our opi n i o n , there's no question t h a t Great Western 

should operate t h i s w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h an A p r i l 5 th, 

1995, memo from David Catanach t o B i l l LeMay? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Does t h a t memorandum comprise Great Western's 

E x h i b i t Number 11? 
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A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does t h a t memorandum p u r p o r t t o set 

f o r t h suggested g u i d e l i n e s t o be u t i l i z e d when d e c i d i n g 

competing f o r c e p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Mr. Heathington, were E x h i b i t s 1 through 11 

prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and 

supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission of 

E x h i b i t s 1 through 11, s p e c i f i c a l l y i n c l u d i n g E x h i b i t s 8a 

and 9a. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: One through 11 are admitted. 

MR. OWEN: That concludes my examination of t h i s 

witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I f I may, Mr. Examiner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Heathington, what's the r e l a t i o n s h i p between 

Davoil and Great Western? 

A. There's no r e l a t i o n s h i p . I t ' s an independent 

c o r p o r a t i o n . 
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Q. There's no relationship whatsoever? 

A. Not as of t h i s date. 

Q. Didn't you t e s t i f y — Did you t e s t i f y p r e v i o u s l y 

before t h i s Commission t h a t Davoil was a s p i n o f f of Great 

Western? 

A. They were a s p i n o f f 25 years ago from Great 

Western D r i l l i n g Company, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay, do they gave common p r i n c i p a l s ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Do they share the same lease areas i n New Mexico? 

A. Up u n t i l 1977 they do, they do share s i m i l a r 

lease p o s i t i o n s . 

Q. Do they share s i m i l a r lease p o s i t i o n s i n New 

Mexico today? 

A. Only those assets acquired p r i o r t o 1977. 

Q. Okay, and t h i s was one of those assets? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Okay. I s i t — I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, then, 

you and Davoil commonly share i n t e r e s t s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. So i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area — 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. Okay. And do you r o u t i n e l y p a r t i c i p a t e i n 

p r o j e c t s as a group? 

A. They make t h e i r own independent e v a l u a t i o n s and 
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de c i s i o n s , but we do tend t o get along w i t h each other, 

yes. 

Q. Okay, have they ever disagreed w i t h a p o s i t i o n 

taken by Great Western f o r p r o p e r t i e s i n New Mexico, i n 

which you share a leasehold i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Sure. 

Q. When? 

A. They would sometimes p a r t i c i p a t e , and — We 

sometimes p a r t i c i p a t e i n p r o j e c t s and they don't, they w i l l 

farm out our lease. 

Q. Can you p o i n t t o any i n New Mexico? 

A. Yes, we have a Grayburg Deep U n i t , I b e l i e v e i t 

i s , where we've d r i l l e d several Morrow w e l l s w i t h P h i l l i p s 

and EOG west of Loco H i l l s , and Davoil has not p a r t i c i p a t e d 

w i t h t h e i r i n t e r e s t , whereas Great Western has p a r t i c i p a t e d 

as a working i n t e r e s t owner. 

Q. Okay, and how f a r i s t h a t from t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

area? 

A. I t ' s i n Eddy County, i t ' s 30, 4 0 miles away. 

Q. Okay. Now, you have been a lease owner i n t h i s 

area f o r over 30 years; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. Just about 3 0 years, I guess i t i s . I t ' s 

coming up on 3 0 years. 

Q. And you referenced a Morrow w e l l t h a t you a l l had 

d r i l l e d i n the 1970s; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, how close i s t h a t w e l l t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

area? 

A. I t ' s about two and a h a l f miles southeast of 

here. 

Q. Okay, and does i t produce from the same pool t h a t 

i s the t a r g e t of the w e l l t h a t you propose today? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

Q. I t does? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. So you've had a w e l l i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r pool i n 

t h i s area f o r over 3 0 years, and you haven't proposed the 

d r i l l i n g of an a d d i t i o n a l w e l l u n t i l today 

A. Well, i t ' s over two and a h a l f miles away. I t ' s 

c e r t a i n l y not the same exact geology. 

Q. Okay, a l l r i g h t . I s t h a t the only Atoka-Morrow 

w e l l t h a t Great Western has d r i l l e d i n Eddy or Lea County? 

A. No, s i r . I mean, we've p a r t i c i p a t e d j u s t a m i l e 

east of here as a s i g n i f i c a n t nonoperator w i t h a couple 

of — 

Q. Let me focus my question. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I s t h a t the only Atoka-Morrow w e l l t h a t Great 

Western has d r i l l e d i n Eddy or Lea County? 

A. No, s i r . 
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Q. You have d r i l l e d another well? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Which w e l l i s that? 

A. Five or s i x miles n o r t h of here we've taken w e l l s 

t o the Morrow i n the Cleveland area w i t h i n the l a s t 10 or 

12 years, yes, s i r . 

Q. These are w e l l s t h a t you have d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. As the d r i l l e r and operator? 

A. Yes, s i r 

Q. Okay, I thought you t e s t i f i e d t h a t those w e l l s t o 

the n o r t h were completed i n the Wolfcamp? 

A. They were completed i n the Wolfcamp, but they 

went t o the Morrow. 

Q. Did they ever produce i n the Morrow? 

A. No, they — May have a l i t t l e b i t . They weren't 

s i g n i f i c a n t producers i n the Morrow, no. 

Q. And when were those w e l l s d r i l l e d ? 

A. Those were d r i l l e d i n the mid-1980s. 

Q. How many? 

A. I be l i e v e there were three. 

Q. And i t ' s your r e c o l l e c t i o n t h a t they went t o the 

Morrow, or you t h i n k they went t o the Morrow? 

A. I know a t l e a s t one of them went t o the Morrow. 

Q. Okay. So as you s i t here today, you can t e s t i f y 
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t h a t Great Western has d r i l l e d one w e l l t o the Atoka-Morrow 

i n the 1970s and one w e l l t o the Morrow i n the 1980s? 

A. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area t h a t ' s probably t r u e . 

Q. Okay. You were present at the — Well, you've 

been present a t a number of hearings, or a t l e a s t two or 

th r e e hearings before the D i v i s i o n i n the l a s t two months, 

c o r r e c t , where you've discussed the development of t h i s 

area? 

A. I've been present i n one other hearing, yes. 

Q. Okay, and you're aware from those hearings t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n has d r i l l e d over 15 Morrow gas w e l l s i n and 

around the Lovington area i n the l a s t f i v e years; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Let me ask you, Mr. Heathington, since 

Great Western d r i l l e d one w e l l i n the 1970s and, as you 

t e s t i f y here today, one w e l l t o the Morrow i n the 1980s, 

when you compare t h a t t o the f a c t t h a t A r r i n g t o n has 

d r i l l e d 15 deep gas w e l l s i n t h i s area, would you agree 

w i t h me t h a t A r r i n g t o n , i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, has 

s u b s t a n t i a l l y more experience w i t h d r i l l i n g Atoka-Morrow 

w e l l s than Great Western? 

A. Not necessarily. I would l i k e t o r e f e r t o a 

pending a p p l i c a t i o n before t h i s D i v i s i o n , less than a m i l e 

of here, where 13 s i g n i f i c a n t New Mexico operators have 
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supported Great Western D r i l l i n g Company as an operator of 

a very s i m i l a r type of t e s t w e l l i n t h i s area. So they 

apparently t h i n k t h a t we have more a b i l i t y t o get t h a t w e l l 

d r i l l e d than Mr. A r r i n g t o n . 

Q. Well, when d i d Great Western decide t o dust o f f 

i t s geology i n t h i s area and update i t s records and examine 

the development of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area? When d i d t h a t 

happen? 

A. Oh, probably the f i r s t of t h i s year, a f t e r 

r e c e i v i n g a farmout request from Yates Petroleum. 

Q. So the only reason t h a t you became i n t e r e s t e d i n 

any prospect i n t h i s area i s because you received a farmout 

proposal from Yates? 

A. That was what i n i t i a l l y got us l o o k i n g a t t h i s 

area, yes. 

Q. Okay, and what d i d t h a t area cover? 

A. This f e d e r a l lease covers several d i f f e r e n t 

t r a c t s throughout t h i s area, and they were t r y i n g t o 

acquire i n t e r e s t i n two or three sections i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area. 

Q. Was Yates t r y i n g t o acquire an i n t e r e s t i n the 

east h a l f of Section 1, which i s the subject of the hearing 

today? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Were they t r y i n g t o acquire an i n t e r e s t i n 
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Section 34 t o the northeast? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And were they t r y i n g t o acquire an i n t e r e s t i n 

Section 33 t o the northwest? 

A. I beli e v e so. 

Q. Okay. And up t o the time t h a t you received a 

farmout from Yates, you at Great Western d i d n ' t pay much 

a t t e n t i o n t o t h i s area whatsoever, d i d you? 

A. We had not looked a t i t , no, i n d e t a i l . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. Let me approach, i f I may, 

the witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Mr. Heathington, I've handed 

you what was marked as — 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I would note t h a t copies 

of an e x h i b i t have been handed around. I don't have 

whatever has been out or reviewed, what's i n f r o n t of Mr. 

Heathington. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, has there been a copy — 

Do you have a copy? 

MR. OWEN: I don't — 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Mr. Heathington, I've handed 

you what was marked as E x h i b i t Number 3 t o — i n Case 

Number 12,942. Have you seen t h i s e x h i b i t before? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, before you proceed w i t h 

the examination, l e t ' s be sure t h a t Mr. Owen has a copy of 

t h a t . 

Okay, are you ready t o proceed, Mr. Owen? 

MR. OWEN: Not q u i t e , Mr. Examiner. A l l r i g h t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Mr. Heathington, t h i s e x h i b i t 

represents t h a t on January 31st David A r r i n g t o n was s t a k i n g 

an o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n f o r the w e l l t h a t you have proposed 

here today, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, and based on your testimony, a t the time 

t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s out there s t a k i n g a l o c a t i o n , o b t a i n i n g 

an a r c h a e o l o g i c a l survey, o b t a i n i n g an arc h a e o l o g i c a l 

approval, Great Western i s j u s t s t a r t i n g t o study t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area because of the proposal they received from 

Yates; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's probably about r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. When d i d Great Western become i n t e r e s t e d 

i n developing the east h a l f of Section 1? 

A. I ' d l i k e t o defer t o my g e o l o g i c a l witness on 

t h a t , because we've acquired s i g n i f i c a n t seismic data and 

done q u i t e a b i t of work i n here over the l a s t few months, 

so I'm not e x a c t l y sure. 
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Q. So you're not aware when Great Western became 

i n t e r e s t e d i n developing the east h a l f of Section 1? 

A. I t ' s been several months ago. I mean, several 

months ago i s when we i d e n t i f i e d t h i s as a p o t e n t i a l 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay, l e t me ask you, when d i d you become aware 

t h a t Great Western was i n t e r e s t e d i n developing the east 

h a l f of Section 1? 

A. I b e l i e v e l a s t summer. 

Q. Last summer when? 

A. I don't r e c a l l e x a c t l y , Mike. 

Q. Was i t a f t e r you received the w e l l proposal from 

David Arrington? 

A. I'm not e x a c t l y sure. 

Q. To your knowledge, was Great Western i n t e r e s t e d 

i n developing the east h a l f of Section 1 p r i o r t o J u l y 23rd 

when they received a well-proposal l e t t e r from A r r i n g t o n ? 

A. I'm sure we were looking a t the area by then, 

yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you had never 

received what you marked as Great Western E x h i b i t Number 6, 

which i s an AFE t h a t was submitted by David A r r i n g t o n . I s 

t h a t your testimony, t h a t you d i d n ' t receive E x h i b i t 6? 

A. No, we received E x h i b i t 6 — Yes, t h a t i s my 

testimony, w i t h the amended l o c a t i o n , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s . Did you — I n J u l y of 

2 002, almost s i x months ago, d i d n ' t you rece i v e an AFE from 

David A r r i n g t o n t h a t contained the cost estimates t h a t are 

set f o r t h i n t h i s E x h i b i t Number 6? 

A. We received t h i s AFE w i t h an i n c o r r e c t l o c a t i o n 

of what t h i s e x h i b i t shows. 

Q. Okay, and t h i s e x h i b i t i s dated J u l y 10th, 2002; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And the only p o i n t you're making i s t h a t the 

l o c a t i o n on t h i s e x h i b i t was changed from 1335 t o 1665; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Right. I mean, and t h a t p o i n t i s because i n a 

the s i t u a t i o n where you have a v a l i d j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement — i n t h i s case we don't -- you don't have a 

v a l i d w e l l proposal — 

Q. Well, l e t me ask you — 

A. — i f the l o c a t i o n i s not c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I s the only d i f f e r e n c e between the AFE 

t h a t you received i n J u l y of 2 002 and E x h i b i t 6 i s 

l o c a t i o n , up i n the upper l e f t - h a n d corner? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Everything else i s the same? 

A. Right. 

Q. I s t h a t r i g h t ? 
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A. That's right. 

Q. Okay. Now, I t h i n k you t e s t i f i e d t h a t these 

costs t h a t were submitted by Mr. A r r i n g t o n i n J u l y of 2 002, 

there's no s u b s t a n t i a l d i f f e r e n c e t o the cost which you 

have estimated now, on October 10th of 2002? 

A. There's a d i f f e r e n c e , but i n my mind i t ' s not 

s i g n i f i c a n t . 

Q. Okay. So you agree t h a t the costs t h a t you 

submitted on E x h i b i t 5 and the costs t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n — 

on E x h i b i t 6, are reasonable i n your mind? 

A. The estimated costs seemed t o be i n l i n e w i t h 

each other. 

Q. Okay, because I thought you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you 

were concerned t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s AFE was not accurate. 

Did I misunderstand you? 

A. But based on our experience as a nonoperator w i t h 

Mr. A r r i n g t o n i n other w e l l s , we have r e a l concern whether 

or not he can l i v e up t o t h i s AFE, yes. 

Q. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s . Do you b e l i e v e today 

t h a t the costs t h a t are set f o r t h on your E x h i b i t Number 6 

and the costs t h a t are set f o r t h i n your E x h i b i t Number 5, 

are they a reasonable estimate of the costs t h a t you can 

expect from the d r i l l i n g of t h i s well? 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about our two AFEs, or both AFEs? 

Q. Both AFEs. 
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A. Both AFEs. They are reasonable estimated costs. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, when Great Western f i n a l l y got 

around t o sub m i t t i n g a w e l l proposal t o the working 

i n t e r e s t owners, t h a t was i n — the 1st of October, was i t 

not? 

A. End of September, I be l i e v e , yes. 

Q. What was the date of your l e t t e r ? 

A. September 30th, I be l i e v e . 

Q. Do you know when the working i n t e r e s t owners 

received your l e t t e r ? 

A. I assume s h o r t l y t h e r e a f t e r . 

MR. FELDEWERT: I f I may approach, Mr. Examiner? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Mr. Heathington, I'm going t o 

hand you what's been marked as A r r i n g t o n E x h i b i t Number 4 

i n Case Number 12,942. That's your September 30th l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay, and t h i s i s the f i r s t time you've submitted 

anything t o the working i n t e r e s t owners i n the east h a l f of 

Section 1? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay, and t h i s i n d i c a t e s t h a t i t was received by 

Mr. A r r i n g t o n on October 7 t h ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I t went by c e r t i f i e d m a i l , t h a t ' s what the stamp 

says. 
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Q. Okay. Now, the l e t t e r t h a t you sent out i n 

September, what's the location? 

A. I t was the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n 

proposed back i n J u l y . 

Q. Okay, so i t was 1335? 

A. Yes. 

Q. P r i o r t o sending out t h i s l e t t e r , d i d you send 

anybody out t o the f i e l d t o examine the proposed w e l l s i t e ? 

A. At t h a t time we had not. 

Q. Okay. Now, t h i s l e t t e r i n the f i r s t paragraph, 

which i s the f i r s t time t h a t you sent out a l e t t e r proposal 

t o the working i n t e r e s t owners, i t says t h a t a w e l l i s 

going t o be d r i l l e d t o an approximate depth of 1400 and the 

proposed spacing u n i t f o r the w e l l w i l l be the east h a l f of 

Section 34. Do you see that? 

A. Yes, I do. I t looks l i k e a typo. 

Q. Okay. So i n your haste t o get something out a t 

the l a s t minute, i t looks l i k e you j u s t k i n d of cut and 

paste from a w e l l proposal t h a t you had sent out i n Section 

3 4; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I bel i e v e i t ' s described c o r r e c t l y i n the 

reference. 

Q. Well, how d i d the east h a l f of Section 34 get i n 

there? 

A. That's a typo. 
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Q. P r i o r t o sending out t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l e t t e r , d i d 

Great Western stake the w e l l l o c a t i o n f o r the p r o p e r t y t h a t 

i t proposes t o d r i l l a w e l l on today? 

A. No. 

Q. Has Great Western — since sending t h i s l e t t e r , 

has i t been out there t o stake a w e l l s i t e f o r the w e l l 

t h a t i t proposes today? 

A. We have had a production foreman out t h e r e t o 

survey the access i n t o the staked l o c a t i o n . 

Q. When d i d t h a t happen? 

A. Oh, i t was w i t h i n the l a s t 30 days. 

Q. I s t h a t the f i r s t time you sent a w e l l p r o d u c t i o n 

foreman out there? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. P r i o r t o sending out t h i s September 3 0th l e t t e r , 

d i d you conduct an archaeological survey f o r the w e l l t h a t 

you had proposed? 

A. We d i d n ' t t h i n k we needed t o . Those do not have 

t o be d u p l i c a t e d on f e d e r a l permit a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

Q. You d i d n ' t do one? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay, have you done one since? 

A. We don't have t o . I mean, the one's been done. 

Q. Who d i d i t ? 

A. David A r r i n g t o n . 
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Q. Okay, so you're j u s t — you're going t o r e l y on 

h i s a r c h e o l o g i c a l survey i f you're named operator? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. When d i d Great Western become aware t h a t 

t h e r e were surface impediments at the footage l o c a t i o n t h a t 

you proposed i n your September 30th l e t t e r and f o r which 

you a d v e r t i s e d f o r a hearing here today? 

A. At the hearing l a s t month where A r r i n g t o n put on 

h i s A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. So you d i d n ' t know t h a t there was a problem a t 

the 1335 l o c a t i o n u n t i l A r r i n g t o n t o l d you a t the hearing 

l a s t month; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d about the surface owner of 

t h i s p r o p e r t y . Do you know who t h a t person i s ? 

A. Yes, i t ' s Mr. Dan F i e l d s . 

Q. Did you speak w i t h him? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When? 

A. Right a f t e r the hearing l a s t month w i t h 

A r r i n g t o n . We've spoken a couple times. 

Q. Have you spoken w i t h him re c e n t l y ? 

A. Yes, w i t h i n the l a s t two weeks, we've spoken t o 

Mr. F i e l d s . 

Q. Okay. Now, at the hearing on October 10th, Mr. 
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A r r i n g t o n ' s landman t e s t i f i e d t h a t A r r i n g t o n had obtained a 

surface agreement w i t h t h i s p a r t i c u l a r surface owner. Do 

you r e c a l l t h a t testimony? 

A. I f you say t h a t ' s r i g h t , Mike, then t h a t was 

made. 

Q. Okay. Do you have any reason t o b e l i e v e t h a t ' s 

not c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's not what Mr. Fie l d s has t o l d us. 

Q. Do you have anything other than your r e c o l l e c t i o n 

of what Mr. Fi e l d s t o l d you? Do you have any other 

evidence? 

A. No, I do not. He j u s t t o l d us t h a t he had not 

made a deal on t h i s l o c a t i o n w i t h A r r i n g t o n . 

Q. Okay, can you t e s t i f y here today t h a t Mr. 

A r r i n g t o n does not have an agreement w i t h Mr. Dan F i e l d s , 

who's the surface owner — 

A. I c e r t a i n l y could not. A l l I can do i s t e s t i f y 

t h a t Mr. F i e l d s t o l d us t h a t he d i d not. 

Q. Does Great Western have a surface-damage 

agreement w i t h Mr. Fields? 

A. We do not. We've entered i n t o t e n t a t i v e 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h him, p r e l i m i n a r y n e g o t i a t i o n s , pending 

the outcome of what goes on here. 

Q. Has Great Western — P r i o r t o sending out your 

l e t t e r i n September of 2000, d i d you apply f o r a permit 
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from the Bureau of Land Management? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Have you, since sending t h i s l e t t e r out i n 

September of 2002, applied f o r a permit from the BLM? 

A. No. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n has a p p l i e d f o r t h a t 

permit and t h a t they expect approval of t h a t permit by the 

end of t h i s week? 

A. I beli e v e I t e s t i f i e d t h a t t h a t shows t o be 

approved, as of October 21st, there i s an approved permit 

f o r t h i s l o c a t i o n . 

Q. And t h a t ' s issued t o Mr. A r r i n g t o n ; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Mr. Heathington, what do you understand 

the procedures t o be t h a t a working i n t e r e s t owner must 

f o l l o w before f i l i n g a pooling a p p l i c a t i o n w i t h the 

Di v i s i o n ? 

A. As I understand i t , one of the important t h i n g s 

they l i k e t o hear i s the e f f o r t s made t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n d e r of the p a r t i e s . 

Q. Does Great Western believe t h a t i t can decide t o 

d r i l l a w e l l one day and then f i l e a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

w i t h the D i v i s i o n the next? 

A. (Shakes head) 
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Q. I'm s o r r y , you have t o answer — 

A. To p r o t e c t our reserves, yes, yes, I mean, t h a t ' s 

what we're t a l k i n g about he f e l t l i k e we had t o do. 

Q. But i f Great Western was wanting t o propose a 

w e l l , Mr. Heathington, what procedures would you f o l l o w ? 

Can you o u t l i n e those f o r me? 

A. Well, we haven't had any p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s i n 

New Mexico. We t y p i c a l l y o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of a l l 

the p a r t i e s and go d r i l l the w e l l . 

Q. Well, I understand your testimony t h a t you have 

not proposed a w e l l i n t h i s area f o r q u i t e some time. But 

my question i s , do you understand what procedures a working 

i n t e r e s t owner must f o l l o w — 

A. Yes — 

Q. — before f i l i n g a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I do, r i g h t . 

Q. Can you o u t l i n e those f o r me, please? 

A. You must propose a w e l l t o the i n t e r e s t owners — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — and attempt t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . 

Q. How long do you attempt t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n d e r before you f i l e your poo l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. I don't t h i n k there's any set time f o r t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Are you of the o p i n i o n t h a t you can 

propose your w e l l t o the working i n t e r e s t owners one day 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

55 

and f i l e your p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n the next? 

A. Apparently you can. Mr. A r r i n g t o n f i l e d h i s 

p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n w i t h o u t having an i n t e r e s t i n the 

p r o p e r t y . 

Q. So you're of the opinion t h a t Great Western can 

go out and propose a w e l l t o the working i n t e r e s t owners on 

a Monday and f i l e a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n on a Wednesday; i s 

t h a t your testimony? 

A. No, s i r i t ' s not. Great Western would never do 

t h a t . But as I understand i t , some p a r t i e s do. 

Q. Okay. And i s t h a t because Great Western believes 

t h a t such an approach would not c o n s t i t u t e d i l i g e n t e f f o r t s 

t o reach an agreement w i t h the p a r t i e s ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Why i s that? 

A. I'm s o r r y , Mike, could you e x p l a i n the question 

again? 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s . Does Great 

Western b e l i e v e t h a t i t ' s proper procedure t o r e c e i v e a 

w e l l proposal from a working i n t e r e s t owner i n J u l y and 

then do nothing f o r over two months, u n t i l the p o o l i n g 

hearing i n October? Do you t h i n k t h a t ' s proper procedure, 

Mr. Heathington? 

A. We were hoping t h a t there could be some 

discussions t o get t h i s worked out. And when t h e r e were no 
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f r u i t f u l discussions, we f e l t compiled t o f i l e our 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. Well, do you t h i n k i t c o n s t i t u t e s d i l i g e n t 

e f f o r t s t o pursue an a l t e r n a t i v e d r i l l i n g p l an when you 

receive a w e l l proposal i n Jul y and do nothing u n t i l 

October? Do you t h i n k t h a t c o n s t i t u t e s d i l i g e n t e f f o r t s t o 

pursue an a l t e r n a t i v e d r i l l i n g plan? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. You do? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. Okay. Do you t h i n k t h a t c o n s t i t u t e s g o o d - f a i t h 

e f f o r t s by Great Western t o reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement 

w i t h the p a r t y t h a t proposed the d r i l l i n g plan? 

A. Yes, I bel i e v e we've made the e f f o r t s t o recei v e 

— We've made the e f f o r t s t o ob t a i n v o l u n t a r y agreement 

from the p a r t i e s here, A r r i n g t o n has not. 

Q. What does Great Western g e n e r a l l y do when they 

re c e i v e a w e l l proposal i n the m a i l from a working i n t e r e s t 

owner? 

A. B a s i c a l l y evaluate i t g e o l o g i c a l l y t o determine 

i f we'd l i k e t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a proposal. 

Q. Okay, do you have any contacts w i t h the p a r t y 

proposing the well? 

A. We t y p i c a l l y do our own g e o l o g i c a l e v a l u a t i o n . 

Q. Do you respond t o the p a r t y t h a t ' s proposing a 
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w e l l i n any fashion? 

A. T y p i c a l l y , yes. 

Q. How do you do that? 

A. I f we desire t o p a r t i c i p a t e -- I t depends on what 

e l e c t i o n we wish t o make. I mean, i f we want t o make a 

farmout, we would s t a r t farmout n e g o t i a t i o n s . I f we'd l i k e 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e and we deemed the p a r t y t o be an acceptable 

and prudent operator, we would s t a r t the n e g o t i a t i o n of a 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. What about i f you t h i n k the p a r t y proposing a 

w e l l i s not a prudent operator, what do you do? 

A. We f i l e a competing p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay, and how soon do you f i l e t h a t competing 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , t y p i c a l l y ? 

A. I don't see a ti m e t a b l e there t h a t ' s r e l e v a n t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, Mr. Heathington there's no 

debate here, i s the r e , t h a t A r r i n g t o n was the f i r s t working 

i n t e r e s t owner t o propose a w e l l i n the east h a l f of 

Section 1? 

A. There's no debate t h a t he proposed a w e l l , not 

the c u r r e n t w e l l t h a t he's proposing t o d r i l l . He s t i l l 

has not proposed the cu r r e n t l o c a t i o n t h a t he proposes t o 

d r i l l . 

Q. I s any debate t h a t A r r i n g t o n owns the s i n g l e 

l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t i n t h i s well? 
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A. No. 

Q. Okay. And you're aware t h a t because of t h a t , 

A r r i n g t o n w i l l be responsible f o r paying the l a r g e s t share 

of the costs of the w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you're aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n has a term 

assignment t h a t ' s e x p i r i n g i n March of 2003? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Heathington, l e t me ask you, under 

what circumstances i s Great Western w i l l i n g t o accept 

A r r i n g t o n as an operator of a w e l l i n which Great Western 

has a working i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Based on our past experience,I'm not sure t h e r e 

are any circumstances t h a t we could accept him. 

Q. Never? 

A. As an operator. 

Q. Never? 

A. I wouldn't say never, but u n t i l h i s s t a f f and 

personnel issues are addressed I don't see how we could. 

Q. Now, you t a l k e d about h i s s t a f f and you t a l k e d 

about h i s use of consultants. What consultants does 

A r r i n g t o n use i n New Mexico? 

A. I don't know. I mean, j u s t b a s i c a l l y , the 

operators we t a l k t o , you know, he j u s t uses co n s u l t a n t s 

f o r e v e r y t h i n g . I mean, he uses a land c o n s u l t a n t . The 
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landman i s a c t u a l l y b i l l e d t o the j o i n t account. We've 

never seen t h a t w i t h any other operator. I've been working 

f o r Great Western f o r 20 years; none of my services have 

ever been b i l l e d t o the j o i n t account. 

Q. Now, Mr. A r r i n g t o n uses a landman — So the only 

c o n s u l t a n t you're aware of i s the landman? 

A. No, he used extensive engineering c o n s u l t a n t s on 

the King County p r o j e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , now, l e t me back up. What cons u l t a n t s 

are you aware of t h a t A r r i n g t o n uses f o r h i s p r o p e r t i e s i n 

New Mexico? 

A. We have no d i r e c t experience w i t h A r r i n g t o n i n 

New Mexico. 

Q. So when you r a i s e a concern about use of 

consul t a n t s by A r r i n g t o n , you're not r e f e r e n c i n g any use of 

consul t a n t s by A r r i n g t o n i n New Mexico, are you? 

A. Not any t h a t I have d i r e c t knowledge o f. 

Q. Okay. Where's Arrin g t o n ' s o f f i c e located? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have, thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Redirect, Mr. Owen? 

MR. OWEN: Yes, please. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Heathington, Mr. Feldewert handed you an 
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e x h i b i t t h a t has a t the top " A r r i n g t o n T r i p l e Teaser Well 

Number 1". I t was marked as E x h i b i t Number 3 i n the 

October 10th hearing. Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, you went through the instruments by which 

A r r i n g t o n obtained t i t l e i n t h i s p r o p e r t y ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay, I want t o r e f e r t o t h a t E x h i b i t Number 3 

from the October 10th hearing. The f i r s t date t h e r e i s 

January 31st, 2002. I t i n d i c a t e s t h a t an o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n 

f o r the T r i p l e Teaser w e l l was staked; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s r i g h t . 

Q. How much i n t e r e s t d i d A r r i n g t o n hold i n t h i s 

acreage a t t h a t time? 

A. According t o the Lea County records, he owned no 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s f e d e r a l lease at t h a t time. 

Q. Well, not j u s t according t o the Lea County 

records, according t o the instruments t h a t you have by 

which he took t i t l e , what i n t e r e s t d i d he own on January 

31st, 2002? 

A. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas owned zero i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

p r o p e r t y . 

Q. What i n t e r e s t d i d A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, I n c . , 

own on February 28th, 2 002? 

A. He owned zero percentage i n t h i s f e d e r a l o i l and 
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gas lease as of t h a t date. 

Q. I s t h a t true? The l a s t date on t h e r e i s 

September 17th, 2002. Did A r r i n g t o n own any i n t e r e s t i n 

t h i s acreage a t any time represented on t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

A. I don't be l i e v e A r r i n g t o n had any i n t e r e s t as of 

September 17th on t h i s e x h i b i t . 

Q. Okay. I want you t o t u r n back t o A r r i n g t o n 

E x h i b i t — I mean, pardon me, Great Western's E x h i b i t 

Number 9a. That's the A r r i n g t o n A p p l i c a t i o n . 

A. Okay. 

Q. The f i r s t statement on the bottom says t h a t 

" A r r i n g t o n i s a working i n t e r e s t owner i n the E/2 of 

i r r e g u l a r Section 1..." Was t h a t a t r u e statement a t the 

time t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d ? 

A. Based on the source of t i t l e documents t h a t we've 

presented today i n t h i s hearing, t h a t was not a t r u e 

statement. 

Q. Okay. Did A r r i n g t o n have any r i g h t t o propose a 

w e l l i n September, 2002? 

A. I t doesn't appear t o me he had a r i g h t t o do any 

of these t h i n g s l i s t e d . 

Q. Did he have the r i g h t t o stake a w e l l i n January, 

2002? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Did have a r i g h t t o pursue a BLM permit a t any 
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time before September 27th, 2 002? 

A. Not a d i r e c t ownership r i g h t , now. 

Q. Okay. How many proposals f o r v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r 

have you received from Arrington? 

A. Zero. 

Q. You received the AFEs, r i g h t ? 

A. Well, we received the AFE a t the f i r s t l o c a t i o n 

t h a t has now been abandoned and move. 

Q. Has A r r i n g t o n made any other e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n 

your v o l u n t a r y joinder? 

A. He's made no e f f o r t s t o my knowledge. 

Q. How many communications have th e r e been from 

Great Western t o A r r i n g t o n , attempting t o o b t a i n 

A r r i n g t o n ' s v o l u n t a r y joinder? 

A. Well, as of l a s t Friday our management decided t o 

attempt t o make a couple of proposals t o Mr. A r r i n g t o n , t o 

h o p e f u l l y o b t a i n , you know, a v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of t h i s 

s i t u a t i o n t h a t we're hearing today. And we made a couple 

phone c a l l s t o Dale Douglas, and he d i d t a l k w i t h Mr. 

A r r i n g t o n , and informed us t h a t those proposals were 

unacceptable. 

Q. So you had the i n i t i a l proposal from Great 

Western; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The o r i g i n a l AFE? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And you had a j o i n t operating agreement sent t o 

Arrington? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you had an amended AFE sent t o Arr i n g t o n ? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. And you've contacted A r r i n g t o n since t h a t time? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And Mr. Feldewert asked you about the 

estimated costs on t h i s w e l l , and you agreed t h a t the 

costs, the estimated costs submitted by both p a r t i e s are 

reasonable estimated costs; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s , Paul. 

Q. Based on your experience w i t h David H. A r r i n g t o n 

O i l and Gas, Inc . , are the costs estimated by A r r i n g t o n a 

reasonable estimate of the costs t h a t A r r i n g t o n w i l l 

a c t u a l l y charge? 

A. Based on our experience, t h a t ' s a h i g h l y u n l i k e l y 

p r o b a b i l i t y . 

Q. Okay. Do you know what date Great Western's 

A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d i n t h i s case? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I t h i n k i t was the day of 

Ar r i n g t o n ' s p o o l i n g hearing. 

THE WITNESS: You're probably going t o have t o 

help me w i t h t h a t exact date, Paul. 
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MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k we can s t i p u l a t e 

t h a t October 9th was the date t h a t A r r i n g t o n f i l e d — t h a t 

Great Western f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n . I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . I t was 

e i t h e r the day of the hearing or the day before. 

MR. OWEN: I t was October 9th, 2002. 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) When d i d Great Western submit i t s 

w e l l proposal t o Arrington? 

A. We submitted the o r i g i n a l w e l l proposal on 

September 30th, 2002. 

Q. Did you f i l e — Did you submit a w e l l proposal 

one day and f i l e your A p p l i c a t i o n the next? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Feldewert asked you i f A r r i n g t o n owns 

the s i n g l e l a r g e s t — or i f A r r i n g t o n i s the s i n g l e l a r g e s t 

i n t e r e s t owner i n t h i s t r a c t ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s ? 

A. He i s as of l a t e — November 13th, yesterday, Lea 

County Records, he appears t o be the owner of a 50-percent 

i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Was A r r i n g t o n the s i n g l e l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t owner 

i n January, 2002? 

A. To our knowledge, A r r i n g t o n d i d not own an 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s property i n January of 2 002. 
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Q. Was A r r i n g t o n the s i n g l e l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t owner 

when i t f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n i n September, 2 002? 

A. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas d i d not own an i n t e r e s t i n 

t h i s f e d e r a l lease when they f i l e d t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., d i d n ' t own any 

i n t e r e s t u n t i l September 27th, 2002, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. OWEN: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay. I n the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n — I can't read 

E x h i b i t Number 1 very w e l l . Can you give me those l o t 

numbers again? 

A. Yes, s i r . Those are Lots 1, 2, 7, 8, 9, 10, 15 

and 16. 

Q. 1, 2, 7, 8, 9, 10, 15 and 16; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you know which of those l o t s -- You've 

enumerated fo u r u n i t s t h a t you want created, a 320, a 160 

an 80 and a 40. Can you give me the l o t numbers f o r each 

of those f o u r u n i t s ? 

A. Mr. Examiner, I'm having k i n d of a l i t t l e b i t of 

t r o u b l e also w i t h some of these, but — They are hard t o 

see on our e x h i b i t , but I believe the 160-acre u n i t would 

be Lots 1, 2, 7 and 8. 
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Q. 160 i s Lots 1, 2, 7 and 8? 

A. — 7 and 8, yes. The 80-acre u n i t would be Lots 

2 and 7. 

Q. 2 and 7. 

A. And the 40-acre u n i t would be Lot 2, i t looks 

l i k e . 

Q. 2, okay. Do you know i f the a c t u a l acreages of 

these l o t s vary a t a l l from the standard 40 acres? 

A. They do s l i g h t l y , each one of them very s l i g h t l y 

from the standard 40. 

Q. Does your A p p l i c a t i o n contain acreage f i g u r e s f o r 

each of the l o t s ? 

A. No, i t does not. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, we w i l l need t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n i n order t o w r i t e an order i n t h i s case, so I ' d 

g r e a t l y appreciate i t , Mr. Owen, i f you or Mr. Feldewert 

can f u r n i s h me w i t h t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . I s i t i n your 

A p p l i c a t i o n , Mr. Feldewert, do you know? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I don't t h i n k so. No. We can 

get and break i t down. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I appreciate t h a t . 

Q. (By Examiner Brooks) Have th e r e been any 

ne g o t i a t i o n s between A r r i n g t o n and Great Western on t h i s 

issue of operations? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And can you describe, i f you're familiar with 

them, what n e g o t i a t i o n s have occurred? 

A. As I t e s t i f i e d , l a s t Friday we c a l l e d Dale 

Douglas t o discuss a couple of poss i b l e scenarios t h a t 

would forego the necessity f o r t h i s hearing, and they 

i n v o l v e d — one of them involved — Do you want the d e t a i l s 

of the discussion? 

Q. Well, I don't need t o know what you t a l k e d about 

i n terms of proposals, I j u s t need t o know what 

n e g o t i a t i o n s took place and when. 

A. Okay, l a s t Friday we made a couple of d i f f e r e n t 

proposals t o solve t h i s , l a s t Friday, t o allow t h i s t o go 

forward w i t h o u t a hearing. 

Q. Were there any n e g o t i a t i o n s p r i o r t o l a s t Friday? 

A. No, there was not. 

Q. Now, the AFE t h a t was submitted by A r r i n g t o n f o r 

the w e l l 1335 from the east l i n e , I b e l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d 

i n response t o Mr. Feldewert's question t h a t t h a t was the 

only d i f f e r e n c e between t h a t AFE and the one t h a t was 

admitted i n evidence; i s t h a t correct? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And do I also understand your testimony 

t h a t t h a t i s not — t h a t Great Western — t h a t ' s not 

m a t e r i a l t o Great Western i n the sense t h a t you als o are 

proposing your own w e l l at the new l o c a t i o n a l s o , 1665 — 
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A. Well, we proposed the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n t h a t he 

proposed, and then of course i t had t o be moved because of 

surface reasons. And then he never re-proposed the a c t u a l 

l o c a t i o n he proposes t o d r i l l , and we d i d . We went ahead 

and sent out an amended AFE, amended l o c a t i o n . 

Q. There's no disagreement about the l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Not a t t h i s p o i n t , no, except t h a t we haven't 

received t h a t proposal from Mr. A r r i n g t o n . 

Q. Did you also t e s t i f y t h a t you are not f a m i l i a r 

w i t h any other operators who used consultants as 

e x t e n s i v e l y as Arrington? 

A. We have not seen — Operators, some small 

operators d e f i n i t e l y use consultants. There's no question 

about t h a t . And t y p i c a l l y , the more e s t a b l i s h e d or l a r g e r 

the company, the less c o n s u l t i n g uses are made. But small 

operators — We have been i n w e l l s where small operators 

have used consultants, but not t o the extent t h a t we've 

seen here. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the way David Fasken 

operated p r i o r t o 1983? 

A. A l i t t l e b i t . They used an engineering 

c o n s u l t i n g f i r m , I b e l i e v e , yes. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t David Fasken had no employees 

and used consultants f o r a l l functions? 

A. I t h i n k they d i d , i n t o the 197 0s. I was aware of 
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that, yes. 

EX7AMINER BROOKS: Okay, thank you. No f u r t h e r 

questions. 

Mr. Catanach? 

EX/AMINER CATANACH: Just one question. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Do you know what the a s s o c i a t i o n i s between David 

H. A r r i n g t o n and Dale Douglas? 

A. As I understand i t , he i s k i n d of l i k e — He i s 

not an employee, as I understand i t , and he i s j u s t a 

p r e f e r r e d land consultant. He's the p r o f e s s i o n a l landman 

t h a t does Mr. Arr i n g t o n ' s land work. 

Q. Now, he acquired the i n t e r e s t i n t h i s acreage on 

March 1st, 2 001, from Hunt O i l Company; i s t h a t your 

understanding? 

A. That's what the instruments show. 

Q. Now, do you know i f he acquired t h a t i n t e r e s t on 

behalf of A r r i n g t o n a t t h a t time? 

A. I t ' s p o s s i b l e t h a t he d i d , since he's now, as of 

yesterday, assigned t h a t t o him. But I don't know e x a c t l y 

what the r e l a t i o n s h i p was. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, thank you. That's a l l 

I have. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, i f I may? 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. I d i d n ' t q u i t e understand what you sa i d . You 

sai d as of yesterday he assigned i t t o Mr. Arr i n g t o n ? 

A. To A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, yes. 

Q. Are you basing t h a t on E x h i b i t Number 8a? I'm 

t r y i n g t o understand where you're g e t t i n g t h a t conclusion, 

Mr. Heathington. 

A. Dale Douglas assigned an i n t e r e s t i n t h i s f e d e r a l 

lease of record yesterday, i t was f i l e d yesterday of record 

i n Lea County. 

Q. I t was f i l e d i n the records yesterday? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What's the e f f e c t i v e date of t h a t 

assignment? 

A. I t looks l i k e i t was no t a r i z e d on October 4 t h . 

Q. What's the e f f e c t i v e date of t h a t assignment? 

Doesn't i t say e f f e c t i v e f o r a l l purposes as of March 1st, 

2002? 

A. Yeah, i t has an e f f e c t i v e date of t h a t , yes. 

Q. Okay, one other question. We asked about the — 

You've made an issue about the footage l o c a t i o n . Can you 

i d e n t i f y any records t o me t h a t Great Western has f i l e d 

w i t h the D i v i s i o n t h a t i d e n t i f y a footage l o c a t i o n of 665 
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[ s i c ] f e e t from the east l i n e ? 

A. 1665? 

Q. Yeah — 

A. For — 

Q. I'm sorry — 

A. Just i n our A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. I n your A p p l i c a t i o n . Have you reviewed your 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Well, excuse me, I t h i n k we d i d r e f e r t o i t as a 

l e g a l l o c a t i o n i n the northeast quar t e r , yes. 

Q. Okay. Can you p o i n t t o any document t h a t you 

have f i l e d w i t h the D i v i s i o n i n which you have i d e n t i f i e d 

the footage l o c a t i o n t h a t you propose today? 

A. Just the e x h i b i t s t h a t we've t a l k e d about today. 

Q. Which e x h i b i t s ? 

A. Our e x h i b i t t h a t has the 1665 l o c a t i o n on i t , the 

AFE. 

Q. Okay, and t h a t ' s the f i r s t time? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And you're aware t h a t when Mr. A r r i n g t o n 

f i l e d h i s A p p l i c a t i o n back i n September, t h a t he set f o r t h 

i n t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n a 1665 l o c a t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And he also advertised a 1665 l o c a t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you adve r t i s e d a 1665 l o c a t i o n ? 

A. No. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: No f u r t h e r questions. 

MR. OWEN: That's a l l I have of t h i s witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may c a l l your next witness. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you. C a l l Mr. Russell Richards. 

RUSSELL P. RICHARDS, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Please t e l l us your name and where you l i v e . 

A. Russell Paul Richards, Midland, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work f o r ? 

A. Great Western D r i l l i n g Company. 

Q. What do you do f o r Great Western? 

A. I'm t h e i r e x p l o r a t i o n manager. 

Q. Have you pr e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n or one of i t s Examiners? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. At t h a t time were your c r e d e n t i a l s as a petroleum 

g e o l o g i s t accepted and made a matter of record? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 
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t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you made a t e c h n i c a l study of the area which 

i s the subject of t h i s A p p l ication? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of t h a t 

study w i t h the Examiner? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I tender the witness as 

an expert i n petroleum geology. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) Mr. Richards, have you prepared 

e x h i b i t s f o r p r e s e n t a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you prepared t o make a recommendation t o the 

Examiner as t o the r i s k penalty t h a t should be assessed 

against the nonconsenting i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. What i s t h a t recommendation? 

A. I t i s 200 percent. 

Q. Are you going t o e x p l a i n the basis f o r t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I w i l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's t u r n t o Great Western E x h i b i t 

Number 12. Can you review t h a t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. Yes, E x h i b i t 12 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the top of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

74 

the Morrow lime i n the area around the proposed l o c a t i o n . 

The Morrow lime i s a r e a d i l y c o r r e l a t a b l e h o r i z o n i n the 

general area — or a c t u a l l y , you know, over a broad area. 

I t i s a s t r u c t u r a l p o i n t t h a t i s r i g h t below the Atoka 

o b j e c t i v e , and t h e r e f o r e , you know, i t ' s a r e l a t i v e map 

datum. 

Shown on the map i s a — color-coded symbols, 

based on production from — zone of production. The blue 

are Atoka-Townsend w e l l s , and the green w e l l s are w e l l s 

producing from the Morrow. The proposed l o c a t i o n i s shown 

i n red. 

The s i g n i f i c a n c e of s t r u c t u r e f o r t h i s l o c a t i o n , 

i n my mind, i s t h a t the proposed l o c a t i o n i s l o c a t e d w i t h i n 

a southeast-to-northwest-trending s t r u c t u r a l r e - e n t r a n t or 

p a l e o - v a l l e y , and i t ' s my opinion t h a t t h i s was the c o n t r o l 

of d e p o s i t i o n f o r the Atoka sand, which I ' l l t a l k about 

a d d i t i o n a l l y l a t e r . 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t ' s go ahead and t u r n t o E x h i b i t 

Number 13. Talk about the Atoka sand. 

A. E x h i b i t 13 i s a gross sand isopach of what I 

r e f e r t o as the Atoka-Townsend sand. You can see t h a t 

w i t h i n the sand t r e n d t h a t the proposed l o c a t i o n i s w i t h i n , 

t h e r e i s one w e l l producing, based on my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , i n 

the extreme southwestern p o r t i o n of Section 6. That w e l l 

has made a l i t t l e over 100 m i l l i o n f e e t , and i t ' s s t i l l 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

75 

producing 270 MCF per day. 

Also what gets our i n t e r e s t i n the area f o r the 

Atoka i s w e l l s f u r t h e r t o the east i n what I i n t e r p r e t as a 

separate sand t h a t e i t h e r are or p r o j e c t e d t o be more 

economic w e l l s . We're p r o j e c t i n g i n excess of 20 f e e t of 

gross Townsend sand a t t h i s l o c a t i o n , based on nearby w e l l 

c o n t r o l . 

Q. Okay. And keeping s p e c i f i c a l l y E x h i b i t Number 12 

i n f r o n t of you, why don't you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 14 

and review t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. Yes, E x h i b i t 14 i s a cross-section d e p i c t i n g the 

two nearest w e l l s t o the proposed l o c a t i o n . I w i l l p o i n t 

out t h a t t h i s l i n e of s e c t i o n i s shown on E x h i b i t 12, B-B'. 

The l e f t - h a n d w e l l on the cross-section i s the HNG 

Lovington Plains w e l l , which i s a d i r e c t southwest o f f s e t 

t o the proposed l o c a t i o n . And the w e l l on the r i g h t - h a n d 

side of the cross-section i s the Humble E l l i o t t Federal 

w e l l , which i s a 40-acre northeast o f f s e t t o the proposed 

w e l l . 

Just s t a r t i n g discussion about each of the two 

o b j e c t i v e s and what these w e l l s encountered when they 

d r i l l e d them, f i r s t i n the HNG w e l l , they encountered i n 

excess of 30 f e e t of Atoka sand. They cored t h a t e n t i r e 

i n t e r v a l i n three d i f f e r e n t core sections. There was no 

f u r t h e r data released concerning those cores, but i t i s my 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

7J5 

assumption and i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h a t they f e e l l i k e they d i d 

not have r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y i n t h a t i n t e r v a l t o attempt a 

completion. 

Going t o the Humble E l l i o t t Federal w e l l , I give 

t h a t w e l l 24 f e e t of gross Atoka sand. A couple of 

i n d i c a t o r s of r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y there i n t h a t w e l l . F i r s t , 

I've h i g h l i g h t e d i n red the microlog separation, which we 

use as an i n d i c a t o r of p e r m e a b i l i t y . I t ' s on these o l d e r 

logs. I t ' s r e a l l y k i n d of the best t o o l t o look a t . 

The other t h i n g w i t h i n t h a t i n t e r v a l and t h a t 

w e l l b o r e , t h e r e was a DST across the Atoka i n t e r v a l , but — 

i t ' s DST 1 there i n the depth column of t h a t l o g . The DST 

extended down, a c t u a l l y , i n t o a p o r o s i t y zone i n the upper 

p a r t of the Morrow l i n e . DST had good recovery of gas, i t 

flowed gas t o surface a t a m i l l i o n and a h a l f a day w i t h 

i n d i c a t i o n s of good r e s e r v o i r pressure. 

One t h i n g — I mean, i t ' s open t o i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

whether or not t h a t gas came from the Townsend — Atoka-

Townsend sand or from the Morrow lime. Another nearby w e l l 

t h a t was d r i l l e d a t a s i m i l a r time, i t DST'd the Atoka. 

The sand by i t s e l f was t i g h t , so I'm concerned t h a t — even 

though I'm hopeful t h a t , you know, i t ' s of r e s e r v o i r 

q u a l i t y , one of the r i s k s i s t h a t — indeed, t h a t t h a t 

Atoka i n t e r v a l i s t i g h t , and i t ' s t i g h t i n both w e l l s . You 

know, t h a t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k . 
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However, I mean on the other side what we're 

o p t i m i s t i c about i s t h a t t h i s i n t e r v a l can be f r a c t u r e -

s t i m u l a t e d t o increase production. 

Moving down t o what we see as our next primary 

o b j e c t i v e , i t ' s shown as the Morrow e l a s t i c s i n t e r v a l 

toward the lower p a r t of the cross-section. The HNG w e l l 

was completed over about four sands w i t h i n t h i s gross 

i n t e r v a l . The p e r f o r a t i o n s marked i n the depth column t h a t 

were reported were j u s t top and bottom. I don't b e l i e v e 

they p e r f o r a t e d t h a t e n t i r e s e c t i o n , j u s t probably the gas-

e f f e c t sands the r e . 

This w e l l was acidized w i t h 5000 g a l l o n s . I t 

IP'd f o r 1.3 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t a day. I t subsequently has 

made 860 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t , and i t ' s c u r r e n t l y making 

about 80 MCF a day. 

Going over t o the Humble E l l i o t t w e l l , they DST'd 

an i n t e r v a l — i t ' s DST 3 — there w i t h i n t h a t s e c t i o n 

also. That DST had gas t o surface a t over 4 m i l l i o n cubic 

f e e t a day and also recovered condensate. That's 

encouraging. The r e s u l t s of the w e l l are discouraging. 

The DST Number 2 there w i t h i n t h a t — shown on 

t h a t depth column on the same w e l l , had good shows as w e l l 

and had gas t o surface. This w e l l was subsequently — Or 

subsequent t o these DSTs, t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d on t o the 

Devonian, and then w e l l was — a completion attempt was 
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t r i e d over these p o r o s i t y zones i n the Morrow. The w e l l 

IP'd f o r 4.5 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t a day and 257 m i l l i o n 

b a r r e l s of o i l , except i t made — reported p r o d u c t i o n was 

82 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t and no water. 

You know, my opinion about t h i s s p e c i f i c area has 

changed over time. I mean, i n i t i a l l y what our t h i n k i n g 

was, had been f o r some time, i s the reason we weren't 

pursuing i t harder, i s t h a t the Morrow was of l i m i t e d 

r e s e r v o i r extent. I t h i n k the more we've looked a t t h i s , 

though, we f e e l l i k e where the upside t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

area i s , i s i f t h a t indeed i s not the case but what we're 

d e a l i n g w i t h are sands w i t h i n the Morrow t h a t are water 

s e n s i t i v e because of clays. 

The other t h i n g , you know, recent t e c h n i c a l 

advancements t h a t also gives us encouragement i s t h a t 

recent f r a c t u r e - s t i m u l a t i o n techniques employed, we f e e l 

some optimism t h a t they can enhance the pro d u c t i o n i n both 

the Atoka and the Morrow. 

I would p o i n t out again t h a t HNG w e l l only d i d an 

ac i d j o b — 5000-gallon aci d j o b. You know, i f EOG was 

d r i l l i n g t h a t w e l l today, t h a t w e l l would be f r a c ' d f a i r l y 

e x t e n s i v e l y , you know, e i t h e r w i t h C02 or methanol. 

Q. And those — the f r a c techniques and the other 

enhanced recovery techniques lead you t o b e l i e v e t h a t these 

w e l l s w i l l be more successful? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Or t h a t the proposed w e l l w i l l be more 

successful. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Were you present duri n g the October 10th, 

2002, hearing on A r r i n g t o n ' s Case Number 12,942? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Did you hear Mr. B i l l Baker's i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

the geology i n t h a t case? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. How does your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n d i f f e r from t h a t of 

Mr. Baker? 

A. I t h i n k — The main d i f f e r e n c e i s t h a t Mr. Baker 

i n t e r p r e t s the two — p o i n t i n g t o the Humble E l l i o t t 

Federal w e l l , there's two p o r o s i t y — or two zones 

h i g h l i g h t e d i n red i n d i c a t i n g p e r m e a b i l i t y . Mr. Baker 

i n t e r p r e t e d those zones t o be a sand above the Morrow lime. 

His Morrow lime p i c k was below where I have i t . 

I've looked a t t h a t — You know, I had looked a t 

i t before and subsequent t o the hearing and, you know, 

looked a t sample logs, a l l the a v a i l a b l e data. I t ' s not 

conclusive, but I don't see any reason t o change my 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h a t those p o r o s i t y zones are a c t u a l l y i n 

the Morrow lime sample logs, i n d i c a t e t h a t they're not r e a l 

good logs, they're not lag samples, and so there's some — 
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you know, i t ' s subject t o i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

What t h a t does w i t h t h a t lower s t r u c t u r a l datum, 

what he, i n f a c t , has i s a — a t the proposed l o c a t i o n he 

shows a small s t r u c t u r a l closure. And you know, t h a t ' s the 

d i f f e r e n c e i n my mind. They're not s i g n i f i c a n t 

d i f f e r e n c e s . For one t h i n g , I don't t h i n k — This i s not a 

s t r u c t u r a l play f o r the most p a r t . We've got t o have the 

sand, and I'm loo k i n g f o r — you know, I'm l o o k i n g f o r why 

would i t be deposited here. 

Q. When d i d you s t a r t considering the geology i n 

t h i s area? 

A. I t was e a r l i e r t h i s year, l a t e w i n t e r or e a r l y 

s p r i n g t h i s year. What — you know, the t h i n g s t h a t — 

Several t h i n g s t h a t Mr. Heathington had mentioned, you 

know, request, i n q u i r i e s by Yates Petroleum as t o our 

i n t e r e s t i n the general area. There was also a c t i v i t y and 

some t h i n g s going on t h a t we were aware of up south of the 

Morton area t h a t caused me t o s t a r t — you know, t o re- l o o k 

a t t h a t . 

The other t h i n g t h a t we saw was t h a t the w e l l 

staked i n Section 6 — i t ' s a Kukui de-gas w e l l , i t ' s i n 

the northeast p o r t i o n of Section 6 — those recent 

developments, you know, the a c t i v i t y was coming t o us t o 

the n o r t h , you know, we were monitoring t h a t . But they key 

th i n g s was, you know, request and the s t a k i n g of t h i s Kukui 
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w e l l i n Section 6, t h a t we again s t a r t e d l o o k i n g a t i t . 

Q. David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, I n c . , f i r s t 

proposed t h i s w e l l t o you i n J u l y , 2002; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did you do any geologic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h i s 

area f o r purposes of developing a prospect p r i o r t o 

r e c e i v i n g A r r i n g t o n ' s — 

A. Yes, we had — 

Q. — proposal? 

A. — we were i n the process of working i t . 

Q. What were you doing? 

A. Updating a c t i v i t y , monitoring i t . I mean, we had 

the mapping done based on already — you know, w e l l s t h a t 

we had p a r t i c i p a t e d i n years past. I ' d p o i n t t o the w e l l 

i n the extreme eastern p a r t of the map. That's a w e l l 

d r i l l e d by Nadel and Gussman t h a t we owned a 32-percent 

working i n t e r e s t i n . I mean, we were watching i t , we had 

an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . But I t h i n k what — the k i n d of renewed 

i n t e r e s t i n the immediate area caused us t o reconsider i t 

again. 

As I s a i d , my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n p r i o r t o t h i s , my 

concern — and i t s t i l l i s a concern — i s , what i s the 

r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y and as w e l l as, you know, p o s s i b l e c l a y 

damage, water damage, preventing economic pr o d u c t i o n . And 

t h a t ' s a l o t of what caused us t o i n i t i a l l y have concerns 
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about pursuing t h i s f u r t h e r . 

Q. Now, you said t h a t the renewed i n t e r e s t i n the 

area was spurred by the recent developments t h e r e . Was one 

of those recent developments t h a t spurred your i n t e r e s t i n 

t h i s area A r r i n g t o n ' s proposal? 

A. No, we were lo o k i n g a t i t before the proposal was 

received. 

Q. Okay. 

A. He was j u s t a l i t t l e f u r t h e r ahead of us. 

Q. Have you conducted a geologic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

independent of t h a t which Mr. Baker presented a t the 

October 10th — 

A. Most d e f i n i t e l y . 

Q. Did you piggyback on Mr. Baker's geology? 

A. Not a t a l l . 

Q. Did you piggyback on h i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

A. No. I respect B i l l Baker's work, but I c e r t a i n l y 

don't need t o copy h i s work. 

Q. Does any p a r t of E x h i b i t s 12, 13 and 14 i n d i c a t e 

a copying of Mr. Baker's work? 

A. No, they do not. 

Q. Okay. Do you believe there's a chance t h a t you 

could d r i l l a w e l l a t the proposed l o c a t i o n t h a t would not 

be a commercial success? 

A. Yes, f o r the reasons o u t l i n e d before, I do t h i n k 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

83 

t h a t i s a d e f i n i t e p o s s i b i l i t y . 

Q. Does Great Western seek a d i f f e r e n t w e l l l o c a t i o n 

than t h a t proposed by A r r i n g t o n i n Case Number 12,942? 

A. No, we do not. We i n i t i a l l y looked a t a p o s s i b l e 

l o c a t i o n t h a t would more a c t u a l l y t w i n the Humble E l l i o t t 

Federal w e l l , but because of surface c o n s i d e r a t i o n s — a 

couple of t r a i l e r houses w i t h some other surface s t r u c t u r e s 

i n t h a t p a r t of the s e c t i o n — we saw t h a t t h a t was r e a l l y 

impossible. And we don't see a s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e 

between A r r i n g t o n ' s proposed l o c a t i o n , you know, and what 

we would p i c k f i r s t . 

Q. Did you, i n f a c t , independently review the area 

t o determine i f there was a more f e a s i b l e surface l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . As I s a i d , our p r o d u c t i o n 

superintendent looked a t other options. I mean, one t h i n g 

t h a t I considered also g e o l o g i c a l l y was the p o s s i b i l i t y of 

d r i l l i n g t h i s l o c a t i o n f u r t h e r t o the southeast along t h i s 

s t r u c t u r a l r e - e n t r a n t . I thought g e o l o g i c a l l y they may 

have more m e r i t , based on not only t h i s subsurface 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n but also based on the 3-D i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

t h a t we have. 

But there again, we would have had t o move 

s i g n i f i c a n t l y f u r t h e r south than I was comfortable w i t h , 

due t o surface problems, or d r i l l the w e l l d i r e c t i o n a l l y , 

and I d i d n ' t f e e l l i k e t h a t was a t r a d e o f f t h a t was 
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acceptable. 

Q. Okay. Does Great Western propose t o d r i l l t o a 

d i f f e r e n t formation or horizon than t h a t proposed by 

Arrington? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t Mr. Baker recommended a 200-

percent r i s k penalty be awarded against the nonconsenting 

i n t e r e s t owners i f Arrington's A p p l i c a t i o n f o r compulsory 

p o o l i n g i s granted? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Do you agree w i t h Mr. Baker t h a t a 2 00-percent 

r i s k p e nalty be awarded against the nonconsenting i n t e r e s t 

owners i f the lands are pooled? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Have you reviewed A r r i n g t o n ' s recent d r i l l i n g 

a c t i v i t i e s i n the area? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Why don't you review Great Western E x h i b i t Number 

15 f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 15 i s a l i s t of w e l l s based on data 

provided t o me by IHS Energy Services. IHS i s a 

subscription-based data vendor. I t ' s a former Dwight's PI 

company, and t h e i r services provide the o i l and gas 

i n d u s t r y w i t h data t h a t they acquire from, t y p i c a l l y , s t a t e 

agencies. 
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This l i s t covers the period from January, 2001, 

t o the most c u r r e n t data t h a t I had, which i s the end of 

September, I b e l i e v e . I don't have the exact date of when 

t h i s — This data i s updated monthly, but i t lags i n being 

c u r r e n t . 

During t h a t period of time, A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas 

had p e r m i t t e d 23 w e l l s , and they had d r i l l e d 13 w e l l s . 

This also — This i s f o r w e l l s d r i l l e d i n Lea and 

Eddy County, which i s the vast bulk of A r r i n g t o n O i l and 

Gas a c t i v i t y d uring t h i s p e riod of time. 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o — Well, as a p a r t of your 

review of A r r i n g t o n ' s d r i l l i n g a c t i v i t i e s , d i d you also 

whether A r r i n g t o n reached v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h other 

i n t e r e s t owners, w i t h respect t o A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l 

proposals? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Why don't you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 16? Can you 

review t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 16 i s a l i s t i n g which i s a summary of 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t was acquired from the New Mexico Energy, 

Minerals and Natural Resources Department, O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n , website t h a t — under hearing dockets — a l l 

those dockets during t h a t p e r i o d of time, from January 1 of 

2 001 through t o date, were reviewed. 

I was l o o k i n g t o see — j u s t curious how many 
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compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas had 

made d u r i n g t h i s p e r i o d . 

Q. And how many d i d they make? 

A. Twenty. 

Q. How many w e l l s d i d they permit d u r i n g t h a t same 

period? 

A. Twenty-three. 

Q. What does t h a t t e l l you about A r r i n g t o n ' s 

w i l l i n g n e s s t o reach v o l u n t a r y agreement? 

A. Well, before I answer t h a t , I would p o i n t out 

t h a t I d i d make an attempt t o match up compulsory p o o l i n g 

cases t o pe r m i t t e d w e l l s . I could get about h a l f of them 

t o match up. I t h i n k , you know, the discrepancy would be 

t h a t there were permits f i l e d p r i o r t o January of 2001 t h a t 

appear l a t e r on the compulsory p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n l i s t , or 

th e r e were w e l l s t h a t were permitted -- or w e l l s t h a t were 

p e r m i t t e d l a t e r t h a t , f o r whatever reason they have not 

been d r i l l e d or no other a p p l i c a t i o n has been made. 

But you know, w i t h t h i s comparison the conclusion 

t h a t I draw i s t h a t I f e e l l i k e t h a t t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n 

p o i n t s d i r e c t l y t o Arrington's i n a b i l i t y or h i s 

unw i l l i n g n e s s t o reach v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h the 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the p r o j e c t s t h a t they pursue. 

Q. I s t h a t consistent w i t h your experience i n t h i s 

case? 
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A. Most d e f i n i t e l y . 

Q. I s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your experience i n the 

case d i r e c t l y t o the northeast of Section 34? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. How many compulsory p o o l i n g cases has 

Great Western been involved i n , i n the l a s t two years? 

A. Two. 

Q. Which cases are those? 

A. This case before us today, and the one i n Section 

34. 

Q. Has Great Western been involved i n other 

compulsory p o o l i n g cases i n any other j u r i s d i c t i o n s ? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. Has Great Western d r i l l e d and operated w e l l s i n 

other j u r i s d i c t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, we most d e f i n i t e l y have. 

Q. During t h a t same period of time? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Has Great Western been successful i n reaching 

v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h a l l the other i n t e r e s t owners i n 

those p r o j e c t s ? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Okay. Does Great Western have any experience 

d r i l l i n g and operating Permian Basin w e l l s i n the l a s t few 

years? 
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A. Most d e f i n i t e l y . 

Q. Why don't you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 17? Can you 

please review t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 17 i s a l i s t of w e l l s also provided from 

the IHS data set, of w e l l s t h a t were operated by Great 

Western D r i l l i n g Company during the p e r i o d January 1st t o 

date. There were — Within t h i s 21-month p e r i o d , t h e r e 

were 28 w e l l s t h a t were operated by Great Western. This 

does not include areas outside of southeast New Mexico or 

the Permian Basin of Texas. During t h i s p e r i o d of time we 

d i d operate s i x Mesaverde downspacing w e l l s , and 

a d d i t i o n a l l y we operated a gas w e l l on the Texas Gulf Coast 

as w e l l . 

Y o u ' l l see the bulk of our a c t i v i t y d u r i n g t h i s 

time p e r i o d has been i n Terry County where we had a new 

f i e l d discovery i n l a t e 2000 t h a t we have d r i l l e d about 20 

w e l l s on subsequent t o t h a t . This f i e l d — You know, based 

on the r e s u l t s t h a t we've had t h e r e , i t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t 

p a r t of our business. We p r o j e c t i t t o be, you know, a 5-

m i l l i o n - b a r r e l reserve f i e l d . I t ' s probably about h a l f 

d r i l l e d up. There w i l l be downspacing w e l l s and w a t e r f l o o d 

operations t h a t w i l l take place here as w e l l . 

One t h i n g also of s i g n i f i c a n c e t h a t I ' d p o i n t out 

about Great Western's operations i s t h a t i n t h a t s p e c i f i c 

area we are involved w i t h three other operators t h a t , as a 
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nonoperating i n t e r e s t owner, when I compare our operations 

w i t h what they do, we d r i l l the w e l l s c o n s i s t e n t l y lower 

cost, we have had fewer mechanical and d r i l l i n g problems. 

The main issue here i s t h a t we're d r i l l i n g through an area 

of e x i s t i n g production t h a t ' s under w a t e r f l o o d , so we have 

s i g n i f i c a n t issues w i t h l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n and water flows 

t h e r e t h a t we've d e a l t w i t h very w e l l . And also, I would 

p o i n t out t h a t we've made b e t t e r w e l l s based on prod u c t i o n , 

you know, than the other operators t h a t we're i n v o l v e d i n , 

i n t h a t area. 

One other k i n d of s i g n i f i c a n t t e c h n i c a l w e l l t h a t 

Great Western has j u s t r e c e n t l y completed, i t ' s the t h i r d 

w e l l on the l i s t , i n Pecos County, t h i s i s a 10,000-foot 

Devonian gas w e l l t h a t we d r i l l e d a 3 000-foot h o r i z o n t a l 

l a t e r a l i n . I t was, you know, almost a $2 m i l l i o n 

o p e r a t i o n . I t went o f f w e l l , we've made a good w e l l , you 

know, i t ' s c u r r e n t l y producing a l i t t l e over a m i l l i o n 

cubic f e e t a day. 

Q. Are any of these w e l l s depicted on E x h i b i t 17 

deep gas w e l l s i n the Permian Basin? 

A. Well, t h a t Noelke w e l l i n Pecos County i s one of 

the deeper ones t h a t — the Winkler County McKee w e l l i s 

also — the depth i s not noted th e r e , but i t was a deeper 

w e l l . I don't remember the exact depth. 

Q. Does Great Western have the personnel and 
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experience necessary t o prudently d r i l l and operate a deep 

gas w e l l i n the Permian Basin? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. Does Great Western have the personnel and 

experience necessary t o prudently d r i l l and operate the 

w e l l proposed i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. Mr. Heathington i n d i c a t e d t h a t Great Western had 

had a p r i o r disagreement w i t h A r r i n g t o n about some 

operations and had audited A r r i n g t o n ' s operations. Has 

Great Western ever been audited by other i n t e r e s t owners i n 

t h e i r wells? 

A. Yes, we have. I n March of t h i s year, we were — 

an a u d i t was requested by one of our p a r t n e r s i n the Terry 

County w e l l s t h a t we were operating, and t h i s a u d i t was a 

r o u t i n e request, due t o the amount of a c t i v i t y t h a t we had 

and the money involved. We recognized t h a t they had the 

r i g h t t o do t h i s a u d i t under the operating agreement. The 

a u d i t i n v o l v e d expenditures r e l a t e d t o 15 of these w e l l s a t 

the time, and the associated lease operating expenses. 

That a u d i t also covered 95 percent of a l l expenditures 

d u r i n g t h a t time period. As I s a i d , the a u d i t was done i n 

March and i t was completed i n a couple of weeks. 

You know, the two s i g n i f i c a n t b o t t o m - l i n e p o i n t s 

i n the a u d i t was, f i r s t , t h a t we expended a t o t a l of $10.1 
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m i l l i o n on behalf of the j o i n t account. When the a u d i t 

compared AFE estimate t o what the a c t u a l costs were, 

s p e c i f i c a l l y r e l a t e d t o the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l s , Great 

Western's f i n a l cost accounting showed t h a t we d r i l l e d and 

completed these w e l l s w i t h i n 7-percent v a r i a t i o n between 

what we estimated the w e l l s t o cost and what the f i n a l cost 

was f o r the e n t i r e p r o j e c t . 

The second s i g n i f i c a n t p o i n t t h a t came from the 

a u d i t i s t h a t a u d i t exceptions t h a t were i d e n t i f i e d by our 

working i n t e r e s t partners were less than one h a l f of one 

percent of the t o t a l d o l l a r s expended. 

Q. How long have you been i n the o i l and gas 

business? 

A. Twenty-one years. 

Q. How long have you been working i n the Permian 

Basin? 

A. Twenty-one years. 

Q. Were you involved i n the p r i o r p r o j e c t s i n which 

Great Western and A r r i n g t o n were related? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Based on your experience and your experience w i t h 

David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, Inc., do you have an 

opi n i o n as t o whether A r r i n g t o n can pr u d e n t l y d r i l l and 

operate the w e l l proposed i n t h i s case? 

A. Based on our experiences, and comparing t h a t w i t h 
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the experience t h a t we've had w i t h other operators, I 

cannot a t a l l be comfortable saying t h a t he would act i n a 

prudent manner. And t h a t ' s our concern f o r t h i s whole 

matter, i s t h a t he indeed cannot p r u d e n t l y operate these 

w e l l s . 

Q. I s i t your opinion t h a t he cannot p r u d e n t l y 

operate the w e l l i n t h i s case? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you have an opinion as t o whether Great 

Western can prudently d r i l l and operate the w e l l proposed 

i n t h i s case? 

A. Great Western has been i n business f o r over 60 

years, a l l of our s t a f f has been i n place. You know, f o r 

over t e n years t h i s l e v e l of a c t i v i t y t h a t I've shown here 

i s t y p i c a l f o r what we've done durin g t h a t p e r i o d of time, 

o p e r a t i o n a l l y . We have d e f i n i t e l y demonstrated t h a t we can 

c o n s i s t e n t l y operate prudently and e f f i c i e n t l y . 

Q. Are you aware t h a t A r r i n g t o n ' s term assignments 

e x p i r e — a t l e a s t one of them expires the beginning of 

March, 2003? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. I s Great Western w i l l i n g t o have a requirement 

w r i t t e n i n t o any order r e s u l t i n g from t h i s hearing t h a t a 

w e l l be spudded before March 1st, 2003? 

A. Yes, we would. 
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Q. Okay. 

A. We respect t h a t r i g h t t o preserve h i s working 

i n t e r e s t s , and c e r t a i n l y we would not want t o jeopardize 

t h a t . 

Q. Were Great Western's E x h i b i t s 12 through 17 

prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and 

supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission 

i n t o evidence of E x h i b i t s 12 through 17. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Twelve through 17 are admitted. 

MR. OWEN: That concludes my examination of t h i s 

witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Cross-examination? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Richards, do you have E x h i b i t s 15 and 17 out 

i n f r o n t of you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. E x h i b i t 15, t h i s d epicts a l l of the — t h i s 

d e p i c t s w e l l s t h a t David A r r i n g t o n has d r i l l e d i n the 

l a s t — or since January of 2001 i n Lea and Eddy County; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And E x h i b i t 17 dep i c t s w e l l s t h a t were 

d r i l l e d by Great Western i n the l a s t two years? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I t doesn't show any w e l l s i n Lea or Eddy County, 

cor r e c t ? 

A. No, i t does not. 

Q. Okay. The w e l l t h a t you are proposing here 

today, t h a t i s going t o be d r i l l e d i n Lea County; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And according t o your E x h i b i t 17, you have 

not d r i l l e d a w e l l i n Lea County i n the l a s t two years; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yeah, I believe I st a t e d t h a t t o h i s previous 

question. 

Q. And A r r i n g t o n has d r i l l e d , i t looks l i k e , 11 

w e l l s i n Lea County, r i g h t ? I n the l a s t two years? 

A. That would be c o r r e c t . 

Q. Has Great Western d r i l l e d any w i l d c a t w e l l s i n 

Lea or Eddy County — Well, l e t me back up. Has Great 

Western d r i l l e d any w i l d c a t w e l l s i n the l a s t two years? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. I s t h a t one? 

A. The EOG TXL was a w i l d c a t w e l l . The Geodyne 1 
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w e l l was a w i l d c a t w e l l , a c t u a l l y was a — you know, 

t e s t i n g a separate producing t r e n d idea. The B r i t Clare 

16, even though i t ' s got a high number, t h a t was a w i l d c a t 

w e l l based on based on distance from pr o d u c t i o n . The 

ARCO — Those w e l l s , yes. 

Q. Okay, your E x h i b i t 17 l i s t s one w i l d c a t w e l l , 

r i g h t ? 

A. Based on — Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , based on IHS's 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of — yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, based on t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . And i t 

l i s t s a number of them f o r David A r r i n g t o n i n and Eddy 

County on E x h i b i t 15, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Okay, you've been involved i n two compulsory 

p o o l i n g cases — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n New Mexico i n the l a s t two years? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, and how many w e l l s have you proposed i n New 

Mexico over the l a s t two years? Two, r i g h t ? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. Okay, so i n the two w e l l s t h a t you've proposed 

over the l a s t two years, you've had two compulsory p o o l i n g 

cases, a 100-percent r a t e , correct? 

A. Yeah, i f you want t o look a t i t t h a t way, yes. 
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Q. When d i d you — Now, I want t o know when you 

s t a r t e d your examination of the east h a l f of Section 1. 

A. We s t a r t e d l ooking a t the area — t o the best of 

my r e c o l l e c t i o n , i t was l a t e w i n t e r or e a r l y s p r i n g of t h i s 

year. 

Q. And you looked a t the east h a l f of Section as a 

prospect? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n l a t e w i n t e r or — Was i t e a r l y s p r i n g of t h i s 

year? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s when we s t a r t e d working the area. I 

mean, I know where we have acreage, s t a r t l o o k i n g a t i t 

a l l , you know? 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s . When d i d you 

become serious about developing the east h a l f of Section 1? 

A. I t was i d e n t i f i e d as p a r t of the same — as p a r t 

of t h i s process, i t was t h i s summer. 

Q. This summer when? 

A. I don't know the exact date, Mr. Feldewert. 

Q. And t h i s summer i s when A r r i n g t o n proposed t o 

d r i l l i t s T r i p l e Teaser w e l l ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, I don't remember the exact date. 

Q. When you received A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l proposal i n 

J u l y of t h i s year, d i d you t a l k w i t h B i l l Baker about the 

prospect and l o c a t i o n a t any time? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

97 

A. NO. 

Q. What d i d you do i n J u l y a f t e r r e c e i v i n g 

A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l proposal? 

A. Well, I mean, we had i n t e r n a l discussions about 

the f a c t t h a t we would not want t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h him as 

an operator. 

Q. So you guys drew a f i r m l i n e w i t h him i n J u l y 

t h a t you were not going t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h him as an 

operator? 

A. Well, t h a t was the g i s t of the discussions 

i n t e r n a l l y , yes. 

Q. Okay. Did you ever c a l l A r r i n g t o n up and apprise 

them of th a t ? 

A. No. 

Q. When d i d you send a production foreman out t o 

look a t a prospect i n the east h a l f of Section 1? 

A. I t was w i t h i n the l a s t month. I ' d say th r e e 

weeks ago or so. 

Q. Three weeks ago? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. So roughly f i v e months a f t e r you get A r r i n g t o n ' s 

w e l l proposal? 

A. I f t h a t ' s what i t i s . 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have, thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Redirect, Mr. Owen? 
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MR. OWEN: Very b r i e f l y , Mr. Examiner. 

REDIRECT EX/AMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. Richards, do you have an opi n i o n as t o 

whether there are s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e s i n geology 

between the w e l l s which Great Western has d r i l l e d and 

operated i n the Permian Basin and the area around the 

proposed w e l l , which would a f f e c t Great Western's a b i l i t y 

t o p r u d e n t l y d r i l l and operate t h i s well? 

A. The issues are very much s i m i l a r Basinwide, q u i t e 

f r a n k l y . A l o t of i t i s r e l a t i v e t o depth. And a t t h i s 

depth, you know, the basic issues are always going t o be 

d e v i a t i o n , wellbore — you know, s a f e t y containment. I n 

t h i s s p e c i f i c area, the other t h i n g we want t o watch f o r 

are p r o t e c t i o n of p o t e n t i a l r e s e r v o i r horizons by 

prevent i n g and reducing water loss. 

Q. Have you been involved i n w e l l s i n which Great 

Western was a nonoperator, which were d r i l l e d i n Lea and 

Eddy Counties i n the l a s t f i v e years? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Did you review the geology and the engineering 

associated w i t h the d r i l l i n g and operating? 

A. Yes, we d i d . We were s i g n i f i c a n t l y i n v o l v e d i n 

the decisions on those. 

Q. Based on Great Western's experience d r i l l i n g and 
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o p e r a t i n g w e l l s i n the Permian Basin and involvement as a 

nonoperator i n d r i l l i n g and operating w e l l s i n the 

immediate area around the proposed w e l l , do you have an 

o p i n i o n as t o whether Great Western can p r u d e n t l y d r i l l and 

operate t h i s well? 

A. We most d e f i n i t e l y can prudently operate t h i s 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Now, Mr. Feldewert asked you how many 

w e l l s Great Western had proposed i n New Mexico i n the l a s t 

two years. Do you know how many w e l l s Great Western has 

proposed anywhere i n the l a s t f i v e years? 

A. Well, how I would a r r i v e a t t h i s number i s , t h i s 

past two years, t h i s represents our t y p i c a l operated 

a c t i v i t y . I t also represents about h a l f of our o v e r a l l 

a c t i v i t y when I include nonoperated a c t i v i t y . You know, i f 

we were the operator, we would be proposing these w e l l s . 

So i n the l a s t f i v e years I ' d have t o say t h a t we've 

proposed 50 or 60 w e l l s . 

Q. As an operator? 

A. As an operator. 

Q. How many times have you had t o f i l e a compulsory 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Twice. 

Q. Why d i d you f i l e compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s 

i n those cases? 
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A. To p r o t e c t our i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Against what? 

A. Against being forced t o p a r t i c i p a t e or be 

nonconsent w i t h an operator t h a t , based on our past 

h i s t o r y , could not prudently operate these proposals. 

MR. OWEN: That's a l l I have, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay, I j u s t want t o be sure I understand your 

testimony c o r r e c t l y . You have described some d i f f e r e n c e s 

between your geologic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n and Mr. Baker's 

geologic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , correct? 

A. Some d i f f e r e n c e s . I'm not — I don't know how 

s i g n i f i c a n t they are, Mr. Examiner. 

Q. That was going t o be my next question. I got the 

sense from your testimony t h a t you d i d not consider the 

d i f f e r e n c e s i n your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s t o be p a r t i c u l a r l y 

s i g n i f i c a n t . 

A. I t h i n k the main t h i n g t h a t Mr. Baker t e s t i f i e d 

t o , t h a t he f e l t l i k e t h a t t h i s l o c a t i o n was s i g n i f i c a n t 

because th e r e was a small s t r u c t u r a l closure t h e r e , and i t 

was about — j u s t remembering, h i s map was about 40 acres 

i n s i z e . I would disagree w i t h h i s c o r r e l a t i o n . But you 

know, we're wanting t o d r i l l the same l o c a t i o n t o the same 

depth; the outcome i s going t o be the same, no matter what 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

101 

the d i f f e r e n c e between our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s are. 

Q. Right. Did I understand you t o say t h a t you have 

seismic t h a t covered t h i s area? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And when d i d you acquire t h a t , or d i d you have i t 

done? 

A. No, we acquired i t . We have what I b e l i e v e i s 

the same data set t h a t A r r i n g t o n has, and we acquired t h a t 

t h i s f a l l — August — I don't remember when i t was 

r e l a t i v e t o the w e l l proposals, but i t was l a t e summer. 

Q. Okay. The w e l l proposal was i n J u l y , so t h a t 

would have been r i g h t i n the same general area of time, 

r i g h t ? 

A. Right, we knew from our work and d i s c u s s i n g other 

a c t i v e operators i n the area t h a t the key t o t h i s t r e n d i s 

— f o r the Morrow, i s p l a y i n g s t r u c t u r a l lows, e i t h e r — 

you know, k i n d of i s o l a t e d lows, which i s what i s being 

played up t o the northwest by Yates, or being i n p o s i t i o n s 

immediately downthrown t o f a u l t s , which i s — there's a 

w e l l i n Section 22 t o the n o r t h , i t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t 

completion i n the M i s s i s s i p p i a n t h a t was immediately 

downthrown t o a large r e g i o n a l f a u l t . 

So having the seismic was, you know, c r i t i c a l t o 

f i n a l d etermination of appropriate l o c a t i o n s . I mean, the 

basic p i c t u r e t h a t we had based on subsurface has not 
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changed, but f i n e - t u n i n g of the l o c a t i o n s d i c t a t e d the need 

f o r having the seismic. 

Q. Okay. I n o t i c e t h a t t h i s E l l i o t t Federal w e l l 

t h a t ' s on your cross-section, t h a t t h i s i s a c t u a l l y i n t h i s 

u n i t . You ch a r a c t e r i z e i t as i n a c t i v e . Has t h i s w e l l been 

plugged and abandoned? 

A. Yes, i t has. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We found the dryhole marker t h e r e . I t ' s r i g h t 

near a t r a i l e r house. 

Q. Okay. Now, you mentioned one of these w e l l s i n 

which you d r i l l e d through an e x i s t i n g w a t e r f l o o d . That was 

one of your w e l l s i n Texas; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Most a l l these i n Terry County, they're on — the 

shallow producing u n i t i s the Prentice Upper Clear Fork 

U n i t , yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, t h a t ' s not something t h a t ' s i n v o l v e d 

i n t h i s — 

A. No, i t ' s not. 

Q. — t h i s l o cation? Okay. I t looks l i k e , from 

t h i s E x h i b i t Number 17, t h a t most of your w e l l s have been 

i n Texas; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And — 

A. As I sa i d , I would r e i t e r a t e t h a t d u r i n g t h i s 
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time period we drilled six Mesaverde downspacing wells, and 

we also d r i l l e d a w e l l i n the Gulf Coast of Texas. 

Q. Now, they don't do a l o t of compulsory p o o l i n g i n 

Texas. 

A. No, s i r t h a t ' s not an op t i o n a v a i l a b l e t o us. 

Q. Because there are some f a i r l y s t r i c t l i m i t s on 

when i t ' s a v a i l a b l e and because there's some f a i r l y onerous 

c o n d i t i o n s t h a t you have t o meet before you can q u a l i f y — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — i n Texas. 

A. So everything t h a t we do i n Texas r e q u i r e s t h a t 

we achieve v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r , or we're faced w i t h being i n 

a co-tenancy s i t u a t i o n where you're c a r r y i n g t h a t i n t e r e s t 

w i t h no penalty. So i t ' s very, very mandatory t h a t we 

achieve v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I don't have any f u r t h e r 

questions. 

Mr. Catanach? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I don't have any questions. 

MR. OWEN: I have a quick — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JONES: 

Q. Mr. Richards, the r i g t h a t you would get i f you 

were awarded t h i s d r i l l i n g operatorship, would i t be a 
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footage r a t e or a day rate? 

A. They've had discussions w i t h some of the 

a v a i l a b l e operators, and those are the two op t i o n s . I 

t h i n k the f i r s t choice would be a footage r a t e , because we 

f e e l l i k e i t keeps them, you know, i n more of the r i s k 

p o s i t i o n . But t h a t has not been determined y e t . 

Q. Okay, I understand you had a r e a l experienced 

d r i l l i n g foreman t h a t would s i t the well? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Does your foreman s i t the w e l l s from the 

surface t o the TD? 

A. Yes, t y p i c a l l y so, yes. A l o t of t h a t ' s 

determined by whether not i t ' s footage or day work, you 

know. The supervision i s d i f f e r e n t , depending on which 

choice t h a t i s . 

Q. Right. So they might t y p i c a l l y s i t f o r a week 

and then have a r e l i e f s i t f o r a week? 

A. Yeah, I t h i n k — That would be c o r r e c t . This 

close t o Lovington, I t h i n k i t ' s going t o be p r e t t y much 

Kenneth Liven there. 

Q. Okay, t h a t ' s h i s f i e l d . Okay, and t h a t person 

would charge h i s time out t o the w e l l , r i g h t ? 

A. While i t ' s d r i l l i n g , yes. Otherwise, t h a t i s 

covered under the overhead.. 

Q. Okay. What geologic r i s k f a c t o r would you assign 
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t h i s w e l l ? 

A. Risk penalty f a c t o r ? 

Q. Risk f a c t o r . 

A. Chance of success of success? 

Q. Chance of success of success. Or chance of — 

yeah, success. 

A. Well, t o answer t h a t , what my main concern i s , I 

t h i n k we're going t o make a w e l l t h a t ' s p r o d u c t i v e of gas. 

I t h i n k where I see the r i s k i s whether or not i t achieves 

volumes t h a t are i n q u a n t i t i e s t o pay out and r e t u r n an 

investment t o us. So the chance of completion, I would 

say, i s f a i r l y high. One i n , you know, 7 0 percent or 

whatever. The chance of commercial success I would have t o 

categorize as much lower than t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Who owns the northeast of Section 34 i n 

the next township? On your E x h i b i t 13, you show over 30 

f e e t of thickness, and... 

A. The east h a l f of 34 i s the acreage t h a t ' s 

i n v o l v e d i n the other compulsory p o o l i n g case t h a t ' s before 

the Commission now. We own i n t e r e s t t here i n the south 

h a l f of the northeast and the n o r t h h a l f of the southeast, 

and a w e l l has been proposed t o be d r i l l e d t h e r e i n the 

northwest of the southeast. 

MR. JONES: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l of my questions. 

Thank you. 
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EX7AMINER BROOKS: Gentlemen, anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. OWEN: Nothing f u r t h e r f o r t h i s witness. As 

you might expect, I do have a few remarks. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Well, Mr. Feldewert, do 

you have anything t o present? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I have no evidence t o present, 

no, Mr. Examiner. We presented our case a t the October 

10th hearing. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. I assume you also 

want t o make some remarks? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Yes — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e l l — 

MR. FELDEWERT: — please. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — as the A p p l i c a n t you may 

proceed f i r s t , Mr. Owen. 

MR. OWEN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

Mr. Examiner, Mr. Feldewert i s going t o hand you 

a t h r e e - r i n g binder w i t h a number of cases from the 

D i v i s i o n . I appreciate the o p p o r t u n i t y t o address those. 

I t h i n k t h a t those cases are going t o be cases which I've 

presented t o you i n another case, and which — They are 

cases i n which the D i v i s i o n r e c e n t l y considered competing 

f o r c e p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

Those cases were decided on a number of d i f f e r e n t 

f a c t o r s . One of them was decided on geology, one of them 
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was decided on the m a j o r i t y i n t e r e s t . One or two of them 

were decided on who proposed the w e l l f i r s t , because the 

other f a c t o r s were equal. Those f a c t o r s are s p l i t among 

a l l those orders. 

The only place t h a t we have — Much t o Mr. 

Catanach's discomfort, the only place t h a t we have those 

f a c t o r s compiled i s i n the A p r i l 5th, 1995, memo from Mr. 

Catanach t o Mr. LeMay. And Mr. Catanach d i d an exemplary 

j o b of c a t e g o r i z i n g those f a c t o r s which t h i s D i v i s i o n 

should consider i n deciding competing f o r c e p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

I'm sure t h a t Mr. Feldewert i s going t o go i n t o 

g r eat d e t a i l w i t h regard t o those orders, and I ' l l w a i t t o 

address those u n t i l a f t e r he puts them before you. S u f f i c e 

i t t o say t h a t they s t r o n g l y favor Great Western's 

A p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case. 

But t u r n i n g t o the A p r i l 5th, 1995, memo, because 

t h a t ' s the only one t h a t has a comprehensive set of 

f a c t o r s , I ' d l i k e t o go through t h a t . 

The main t h i n g t h a t you need t o consider i s 

re l e v a n t and p e r t i n e n t evidence i n a number of d i f f e r e n t 

f a c t o r s numbered a) through i ) . The f i r s t one i s "Any 

in f o r m a t i o n r e l a t e d t o pre-hearing n e g o t i a t i o n s conducted 

between the p a r t i e s . " 

There's only been one p a r t y t h a t has proposed any 
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n e g o t i a t i o n s . That's Great Western. A r r i n g t o n has not 

n e g o t i a t e d , and has declined t o n e g o t i a t e when Great 

Western has proposed i t . Without g i v i n g you the d e t a i l s of 

those n e g o t i a t i o n s , which Mr. Heathington d i d not do, the 

s a l i e n t f a c t i s t h a t A r r i n g t o n has d e c l i n e d t o n e g o t i a t e ; 

Great Western has o f f e r e d n e g o t i a t i o n s . 

The second f a c t o r i s the w i l l i n g n e s s of the 

operator t o reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement. Great Western has 

reached v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h the other i n t e r e s t owner 

i n t h i s w e l l , the t h i r d p a r t y . A r r i n g t o n has reached 

v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h nobody. Great Western contacted 

A r r i n g t o n l a s t week t o gauge i n t e r e s t i n a compromise, i n a 

v o l u n t a r y agreement. A r r i n g t o n was u n w i l l i n g t o consider a 

v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

A r r i n g t o n has f a i l e d t o reach v o l u n t a r y agreement 

i n 20 out of 23 recent p r o j e c t s i n which A r r i n g t o n was 

i n v o l v e d i n j u s t the l a s t two years. A r r i n g t o n ' s p r a c t i c e 

of i n v o k i n g t h i s D i v i s i o n ' s power t o take another p a r t y ' s 

i n t e r e s t should not be endorsed or encouraged by t h i s 

D i v i s i o n . 

A r r i n g t o n doesn't j u s t pool f i r s t and n e g o t i a t e 

l a t e r , Mr. Examiner. I f we look at the evidence i n t h i s 

case, A r r i n g t o n pools f i r s t and acquires i t s i n t e r e s t s 

l a t e r . At the time t h a t i t f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n , 

A r r i n g t o n held no i n t e r e s t , zero i n t e r e s t , i n t h i s acreage. 
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One of Arrin g t o n ' s c o n t r a c t landmen — and t h a t ' s 

e x a c t l y how Mr. Baker's [ s i c ] capacity i s c h a r a c t e r i z e d i n 

the t r a n s c r i p t from the October 10th hearing, on page 6, 

l i n e s 17 through 25: 

QUESTION: Mr. Douglas, would you please s t a t e 

your f u l l name and address f o r the record? 

ANSWER: My name i s Dale Douglas, I r e s i d e i n 

Midland, Texas. 

QUESTION: And by whom are you employed and i n 

what capacity? 

ANSWER: I'm an independent petroleum landman 

doing c o n t r a c t land services f o r David A r r i n g t o n O i l 

and Gas, Inc. 

Dale Douglas owned i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p r o p e r t y 

since March of 2001. A r r i n g t o n f i r s t acquired i t s i n t e r e s t 

September 27th, 2002. That i s the f i r s t time t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n owned any i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p r o p e r t y , and t h a t was 

a small i n t e r e s t , a 14-percent i n t e r e s t , from Tom Brown, 

Inc. A r r i n g t o n acquired the balance of i t s i n t e r e s t s , w i t h 

which i t s i t s before you today, on October 4t h , 2002, 

through an assignment from Mr. Douglas. 

A r r i n g t o n doesn't j u s t pool f i r s t and n e g o t i a t e 

l a t e r , i t pools f i r s t and acquires i t s i n t e r e s t s l a t e r . 
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Moreover, Arrington proposed a well at a location 

1335 f e e t from the east l i n e on Ju l y 25th. I t f i l e d i t s 

A p p l i c a t i o n on September 17th. I t d i d n ' t acquire any 

i n t e r e s t , September 27th. I t d i d n ' t acquire i t s m a j o r i t y 

i n t e r e s t u n t i l October 4th, and i t never proposed a w e l l a t 

the 1665 l o c a t i o n . The only way Great Western knew about 

i t i s , we came t o the hearing on October 10th. 

One of the f a c t o r s t h a t some of these orders 

consider i s , when was the f i r s t w e l l proposal made? 

A r r i n g t o n has never proposed a w e l l a t the 1665 l o c a t i o n . 

I t ' s proposed a w e l l a t a 1335 l o c a t i o n . Great Western has 

proposed a w e l l a t both l o c a t i o n s and i s p r o p e r l y before 

the Examiner on t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n . 

The t h i r d f a c t o r i s the i n t e r e s t ownership w i t h 

the p a r t i c u l a r spacing u n i t being sought. 

A r r i n g t o n s i t s here today r e p r e s e n t i n g 50 percent 

of the i n t e r e s t . Again, I'm not going t o go i n t o g reat 

d e t a i l on t h a t ; I've done i t ad nauseum. But A r r i n g t o n has 

only very r e c e n t l y acquired t h a t i n t e r e s t . A r r i n g t o n had 

no r i g h t , t o the extent t h a t any n e g o t i a t i o n s were 

considered, t o the extent t h a t any a c t i v i t y was undertaken 

by David H. A r r i n g t o n O i l and Gas, p r i o r September 27th, 

2002. A l l of t h a t a c t i v i t y was taken before A r r i n g t o n 

owned any i n t e r e s t i n t h i s t r a c t a t a l l . 

Great Western represents 50 percent of the 
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interest before you. That interest is committed to this 

p r o j e c t through a j o i n t operating agreement, which t r e a t s 

not j u s t who's committed t o t h i s w e l l and what the r i s k 

p e n alty f o r nonconsenting i n t e r e s t owners i s , but a great 

deal of other f a c t o r s , i n c l u d i n g j o i n t accounting, 

i n c l u d i n g subsequent operations. A l l the f a c t o r s are 

l i s t e d i n the j o i n t operating agreement, and I i n v i t e you 

t o consider them. They're f a r more comprehensive than any 

order t h a t could be issued by t h i s D i v i s i o n . That 

v o l u n t a r y agreement should be recognized and should be 

endorsed by t h i s D i v i s i o n . 

The next f a c t o r i s the geologic evidence and 

testimony as i t r e l a t e s t o the proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n s , 

e s p e c i a l l y i f the l o c a t i o n s are d i f f e r e n t . That's not a t 

issue. 

There's a s l i g h t d i f f e r e n c e between the geology, 

but the reason t h a t was presented i s t o show you t h a t Great 

Western wasn't s i t t i n g around. Great Western was 

developing t h i s p r o j e c t . I t was developing t h i s p r o j e c t 

independently of A r r i n g t o n . I t acquired i t s 3-D seismic i n 

August, I b e l i e v e Mr. Richards t e s t i f i e d . But i t had been 

considered and a c t i v e l y working the geology on t h i s 

prospect since the beginning of t h i s year. The geology i s 

not an issue. But what i s a t issue i s t h a t Great Western 

has been a c t i v e l y developing t h i s p r o j e c t . 
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And t h a t i s the next f a c t o r , the i n f o r m a t i o n 

regarding the date the prospect was developed, proposed, e t 

cetera. I want t o s t r e s s again t h a t A r r i n g t o n has never 

proposed a w e l l a t the l o c a t i o n which i s before you. 

A r r i n g t o n f i l e s i t s A p p l i c a t i o n , then acquires i t s 

i n t e r e s t s , and never proposes the w e l l . I t proposed the 

w e l l w i t h those costs a t the 13 3 5 l o c a t i o n . But i t ' s not 

an i n s i g n i f i c a n t f a c t t h a t A r r i n g t o n has not proposed t h i s 

w e l l . 

Great Western has considered t h i s prospect since 

e a r l y 2002. I t proposed the w e l l on September 3 0 t h , 2002. 

I t submitted i t s AFE on October 21st — w e l l i t s amended 

AFE, pardon me. I t s i n i t i a l AFE was submitted on September 

30th, 2002, w i t h the proposed JOA, and i t s amended AFE was 

submitted on October 21st, 2002. I t s A p p l i c a t i o n , i n f a c t , 

was f i l e d not the day a f t e r the Great Western AFE was 

submitted but sometime t h e r e a f t e r , i n October. 

Regarding Arrington's n e g o t i a t i o n s , i t ' s also not 

an i n s i g n i f i c a n t f a c t t h a t Great Western has proposed a 

JOA, has proposed monthly r a t e s f o r operation and 

su p e r v i s i o n . A r r i n g t o n has not. A l l A r r i n g t o n has 

proposed i s a w e l l a t a l o c a t i o n t h a t ' s not before the 

D i v i s i o n , w i t h no d e t a i l e d proposal, such as has been 

submitted by Great Western. 

The next f a c t o r i s the overhead r a t e s f o r 
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s u p e r v i s i o n . Great Western's r a t e s are s l i g h t l y lower, but 

as Mr. Heathington t e s t i f i e d , t h a t ' s not s i g n i f i c a n t , we're 

not making an issue of t h a t i n t h i s case. 

What we are making an issue of i s the 

reasonableness of Arrington's estimate. Great Western 

comes i n r i g h t around i t s AFEs on the w e l l s i t d r i l l s , 

A r r i n g t o n doesn't. 

Great Western t e s t i f i e d — and the only testimony 

before t h i s D i v i s i o n i s t h a t A r r i n g t o n c o n s i s t e n t l y 

overshoots i t s AFEs by a large margin, i n c l u d i n g i n one 

case 180 percent. We're not presenting t h a t t o you t o 

t e s t i f y about the p r i o r dispute between the p a r t i e s , we're 

prese n t i n g t h a t t o you so t h a t you can assess the 

reasonableness of Arrin g t o n ' s proposed overhead r a t e s . We 

submit t h a t the ra t e s proposed by A r r i n g t o n are reasonable, 

but we submit t h a t Arrington's estimate i t s e l f i s probably 

not where A r r i n g t o n i s going t o come out. Those costs are 

suspect. 

The next f a c t o r i s the proposed r i s k p e n a l t y . 

That's simply not at issue. Both p a r t i e s are proposing a 

200-percent r i s k penalty. 

Next f a c t o r i s the s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n 

AFEs. I s the r e any s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n AFEs? I've 

already covered t h a t . They're very close. We're not 

making an issue of the a c t u a l AFEs themselves, we're making 
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an issue about Arri n g t o n ' s a c t u a l estimates. I t h i n k i t 

h i g h l y l i k e l y , and based on these witnesses' e x p e r t i s e , 

experience, i t ' s t h e i r opinion t h a t A r r i n g t o n w i l l not come 

i n close t o those AFEs, or close t o h i s AFE. 

F i n a l f a c t o r i s other i n f o r m a t i o n deemed 

p e r t i n e n t by the D i v i s i o n Examiner. And w i t h a l l due 

respect t o Mr. Catanach, there i s one f a c t o r t h a t ' s 

o u t l i n e d i n Order Number R-10,731-B t h a t f a l l s w i t h i n t h i s , 

i t doesn't f a l l w i t h i n the other f a c t o r s l i s t e d . And on 

page 9 of t h a t order, one of the f a c t o r s i s — l i s t e d on 

t h a t order, i s t h a t both p a r t i e s are capable of op e r a t i n g 

the p r o p e r t y prudently, so i t ' s not a f a c t o r i n t h a t case, 

i n Order Number R-10,7 31-B. 

I n t h i s case, though, i t i s an issue. A r r i n g t o n 

i s not capable of operating t h i s property p r u d e n t l y . Great 

Western and Davoil have f o r m a l l y and v o l u n t a r i l y committed 

t o the w e l l through execution of the JOA naming Great 

Western as the operator. 

This D i v i s i o n ' s s t a t u t o r y d u t i e s are t o prevent 

waste and p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . By j o i n i n g Great 

Western's proposal and executing Great Western's JOA, 

Davoil has i n d i c a t e d i t s agreement t h a t Great Western i s a 

p a r t y b e t t e r s u i t e d t o preventing waste, p r o t e c t i n g 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and operating t h i s p r o p e r t y p r u d e n t l y . 

This D i v i s i o n should recognize t h a t endorsement. 
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Moreover, A r r i n g t o n has s p e c i f i c a l l y shown i t s 

d e f i c i e n c i e s as an operator i n previous dealings w i t h Great 

Western i n f o u r d i f f e r e n t ways. 

F i r s t , A r r i n g t o n doesn't have the necessary 

personnel on s t a f f t o oversee the d r i l l i n g and completion 

of w e l l s . Mr. Heathington t e s t i f i e d e x t e n s i v e l y regarding 

t h a t f a c t . 

Second, A r r i n g t o n f a i l e d t o comply w i t h i t s JOA 

p r o v i s i o n s , i t f a i l e d t o act as a prudent operator by 

w i t h h o l d i n g access t o j o i n t accounting records, by denying 

i n t e r v i e w access t o Great Western's personnel f o r the 

p r e p a r a t i o n of j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s and the o p e r a t i o n of 

w e l l s , by denying access t o A r r i n g t o n ' s o f f i c e s f o r 

purposes of conducting an a u d i t . 

As a r e s u l t , the nonoperators, i n c l u d i n g Great 

Western, when they're involved w i t h A r r i n g t o n , are 

c o n s i s t e n t l y damaged by increased costs, as w e l l as the 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o make informed consent and nonconsent 

dec i s i o n s . 

The t h i r d reason t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s not a prudent 

operator i s , i n i t s previous dealings w i t h Great Western, 

i t f a i l e d t o have any procedures f o r the c o n t r o l of lease 

and w e l l equipment. That shows a f a i l u r e by A r r i n g t o n t o 

conduct a l l w e l l operations i n a good and workmanlike 

manner. 
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And f i n a l l y the f o u r t h reason A r r i n g t o n i s not a 

prudent operator, as Mr. Heathington i n d i c a t e d , i s , i t 

f a i l e d t o provide n o t i c e t o Great Western and other 

i n t e r e s t owners when i t undertook subsequent operations, 

i n c l u d i n g plugging, abandoning w e l l s , s i d e t r a c k i n g w e l l s , 

undertaking other subsequent operations. 

I n s h o r t , Mr. Examiner, what we have i n t h i s case 

i s e s s e n t i a l l y equal i n t e r e s t s , e s s e n t i a l l y equal geology, 

e s s e n t i a l l y equal estimated costs. 

What we also have i n t h i s case i s evidence 

supporting the conclusion t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s not capable of 

oper a t i n g t h i s w e l l prudently. 

What we also have i n t h i s case i s evidence t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n d i d n ' t even own any i n t e r e s t i n t h i s w e l l when i t 

f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n . 

What we have i n t h i s case i s evidence t h a t the 

statement made by A r r i n g t o n i n i t s A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t i t 

owned an i n t e r e s t , working i n t e r e s t , i n the p r o p e r t y and 

had the r i g h t t o d r i l l , was f a l s e at the time i t was made. 

What we have i n t h i s case i s extensive testimony 

t h a t Great Western i s an extremely experienced operator 

w i t h the personnel and experience necessary t o d r i l l and 

operate t h i s w e l l i n a prudent manner. We request t h a t you 

dismiss A r r i n g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n and enter an order p o o l i n g 

the lands and naming Great Western as operator. 
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Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I f I may approach — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I t ' s been a long day, we've had a 

l o t of Arrington-bashing. I'm going t o t r y t o focus the 

case on what I understand t o be the r e l e v a n t f a c t o r s before 

t h i s D i v i s i o n , and the f i r s t — Under Tab 1 I have Mr. 

Catanach's A p r i l , 1995, memorandum. 

And Mr. Owen went through the r e l e v a n t and 

p e r t i n e n t evidence t h a t ' s described i n the memo. I f i n d 

t h a t r a t h e r s u r p r i s i n g because we spent most of the day on 

i r r e l e v a n t and unnecessary evidence under t h i s memorandum. 

And I'm t a l k i n g s p e c i f i c a l l y a t the bottom of t h a t page 

we've had s u b j e c t i v e judgment c a l l s on Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s 

a b i l i t y t o d r i l l a w e l l , we've had s u b j e c t i v e judgment 

c a l l s on Mr. Arrin g t o n ' s a b i l i t y t o produce and operate the 

w e l l , and we've had extensive discussion on i n c i d e n t s and 

d e s c r i p t i o n of previous disagreements between the p a r t i e s 

over t h e r e i n Texas. 

Now, we do not have a witness, and I have not 

prepared a case t o have a l i t t l e m i n i - t r i a l on every 

disagreement t h a t these e n t i t i e s have had i n the past, 

because I've always understood t h a t those are i r r e l e v a n t . 

And i t ' s my understanding t h a t t h a t has been the D i v i s i o n ' s 
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p o l i c y since 1995. And w e ' l l walk through the orders. I 

have y e t t o see any order where there's any d e c i s i o n based 

on previous disagreements between the p a r t i e s or s u b j e c t i v e 

judgment c a l l s on the a b i l i t y of the operator t o d r i l l or 

operate a w e l l . 

And keep i n mind t h a t t h i s i s coming from an 

operator who has d r i l l e d a b s o l u t e l y no w e l l s i n Lea or Eddy 

County i n the l a s t two years and t h e r e f o r e , I submit, has 

a b s o l u t e l y no experience i n t h i s area. 

The r e l e v a n t f a c t o r s are evidence concerning the 

prehearing n e g o t i a t i o n s and w i l l i n g n e s s of operators t o 

neg o t i a t e a v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

A r r i n g t o n E x h i b i t Number 3, which we submitted, 

they sent out t h e i r w e l l proposal i n J u l y of t h i s past 

summer. They d i d n ' t f i l e a p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n u n t i l 

September. 

Mr. Heathington on the stand s a i d , We w i l l never 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l w i t h Mr. A r r i n g t o n . 

Mr. Richards got on the stand and s a i d , Well, we 

made a f i r m d e c i s i o n i n Ju l y t h a t we're not going t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n any w e l l w i t h Mr. A r r i n g t o n . 

They do nothing t i l l October. The Monday before 

the p o o l i n g hearing i s when we receive t h e i r competing w e l l 

proposal. The day before the pooli n g hearing i s when they 

f i l e t h e i r competing p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n . I t d i d n ' t even 
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have a case number yet by the time we got t o the hearing. 

That's how last-minute i t was. 

C l e a r l y the e n t i t y t h a t has demonstrated an 

un w i l l i n g n e s s t o negotiate any k i n d of a v o l u n t a r y 

agreement w i t h A r r i n g t o n which would allow him t o operate 

any w e l l i s Great Western. 

The second f a c t o r , i n t e r e s t ownership w i t h i n a 

p a r t i c u l a r spacing u n i t , favors A r r i n g t o n . He owns 50 

percent, he's going t o pay h a l f of the costs of t h i s w e l l . 

Great Western owns 32 percent, roughly. They're going t o 

pay roughly a t h i r d of the costs of t h i s w e l l . 

The next two, geologic evidence, i n f o r m a t i o n 

regarding the dates — I'm sor r y , geologic evidence, e t 

cete r a , t h a t ' s a wash i n t h i s case. There's no 

disagreement on t h a t . 

The f a c t o r i n e ) , i n f o r m a t i o n regarding dates the 

prospect was developed, proposed, et cetera. That i s 

Ar r i n g t o n ' s E x h i b i t Number 3. 

Now, given the f a c t t h a t they sat around since 

J u l y and d i d a b s o l u t e l y nothing, they've t r i e d t o come up 

w i t h some reason why A r r i n g t o n never proposed a w e l l i n 

J u l y . They t r y t o put some b l i n d e r s on and say, oh, we 

never got a w e l l proposal i n Ju l y a t 1665, i t was a t 1335. 

Well, Mr. Examiner, Great Western — I mean, we 

could play t h a t game, but Great Western has not proposed 
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any w e l l a t 1335. There's no w e l l a d v e r t i s e d a t 1335, they 

never proposed a w e l l — I'm s o r r y , there's no w e l l 

a d v e r t i s e d a t 1665, which i s where everybody agrees t h a t i t 

should be located, and they never proposed a w e l l t o the 

i n t e r e s t owners at 1665. 

A r r i n g t o n advertised the 1665 l o c a t i o n , 

A r r i n g t o n ' s compulsory poo l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

September t a l k e d about a 1665 l o c a t i o n , everybody knows 

t h a t 1665 i s where the w e l l i s going t o have t o be d r i l l e d . 

That l i t t l e t e c h n i c a l argument, t o me, gets them nowhere. 

They also t r i e d t o make an issue about when Mr. 

Dale Douglas, who works on behalf of A r r i n g t o n , has worked 

on behalf of A r r i n g t o n f o r a long time, holds p r o p e r t y on 

behalf of A r r i n g t o n — they t r i e d t o make an issue as t o 

when Mr. Douglas assigned the i n t e r e s t over t o A r r i n g t o n 

t h a t he acquired under the term assignment. That i n t e r e s t 

assignment was e f f e c t i v e March 1st, 2002. So f o r a l l 

i n t e n t s and purposes when Mr. A r r i n g t o n f i l e s h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n , he owns the i n t e r e s t . 

But i f we want t o play t h a t game, Great Western 

comes i n here, and you can't f i n d one l e t t e r from Great 

Western t o Mr. Dale Douglas, the guy they say owned the 

p r o p e r t y , the guy they say held the working i n t e r e s t . 

Great Western, from day one, which of course was 

l a t e i n October — they sent a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n , they send 
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t h e i r w e l l proposal, they send t h e i r competing p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n t o A r r i n g t o n , not Dale Douglas. So f o r them t o 

come i n here and say t h a t A r r i n g t o n d i d not own the 

i n t e r e s t , d i d not have a r i g h t t o d r i l l a w e l l , was not a 

working i n t e r e s t property, i s r i d i c u l o u s . And t o the 

e x t e n t they want t o maintain t h a t p o s i t i o n , t h a t means they 

f a i l e d t o propose a w e l l t o the proper i n t e r e s t owner a t 

the time t h a t i t was sent. 

But we shouldn't be p l a y i n g t h a t game, because 

the r e i s no issue here t h a t the p a r t i e s have proposed 

w e l l s . The issue here i s , who went f i r s t and who d i d the 

work and who has shown the d i l i g e n c e ? 

Now, before we leave the Catanach memo, there's 

only one other p o i n t here t h a t has any d i s t i n c t i o n and t h a t 

i s other i n f o r m a t i o n deemed p e r t i n e n t by the D i v i s i o n 

Examiner. I would submit t o you t h a t the f a c t t h a t Mr. 

A r r i n g t o n has a term assignment e x p i r i n g i n March of 2003 

i s a s i g n i f i c a n t f a c t o r t h a t the D i v i s i o n ought t o take 

i n t o account i n naming an operator, because i t seems t o me 

t h a t Mr. A r r i n g t o n ought t o have the o p p o r t u n i t y , and I 

t h i n k he has earned the r i g h t , t o c o n t r o l h i s own d e s t i n y 

w i t h respect t o t h a t term assignment. 

Now, I want t o q u i c k l y go through the orders 

because i t has been a long day, but Mr. — and I apologize, 

but i n the packet, i n the f r o n t packet of the notebook 
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t h e r e i s an order. I t ' s i n s e r t e d i n the f r o n t . I d i d n ' t 

get i t i n t o the notebook. I t ' s Order Number 10,731. This 

i s an order t h a t Mr. Owen apprised the D i v i s i o n of i n 

connection w i t h another case. 

And y o u ' l l see i f you go through t h a t order, 

which was entered by Mr. Catanach i n January of 1997, they 

had competing w e l l proposals between InterCoast — you have 

t o be c a r e f u l how you say t h a t name, but InterCoast — and 

Yates, i n which they were proposing an e a s t - h a l f l o c a t i o n . 

I f you look a t page 3 of t h a t order, y o u ' l l see t h a t the 

AFEs were s u b s t a n t i a l l y the same, the overhead r a t e s there 

was no debate, there was no debate over the r i s k p e n alty. 

And so what the D i v i s i o n d i d i s , they went through the 

chronology of events. 

And what Mr. Owen quotes — and h i s l e t t e r t o the 

D i v i s i o n i s found on page 7 of the — I'm s o r r y , page 8 of 

the o p i n i o n , and i t ' s Paragraph (24). And i t says, " I n the 

absence of other" competing " f a c t o r s , the o p e r a t o r s h i p of 

the E/2" which was i n dispute "should be awarded t o the 

operator who o r i g i n a l l y developed the prospect, developed 

t h e " geology "data necessary t o determine the optimum w e l l 

l o c a t i o n , and i n i t i a l l y sought t o ob t a i n farmout or 

vo l u n t a r y agreement t o d r i l l i t s w e l l . " 

EXAMINER BROOKS: For the record, I b e l i e v e i t 

says "other compelling f a c t o r s " . I t sounded l i k e you might 
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have s a i d "competing", and I — 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you. 

EX/AMINER BROOKS: — want t o make sure the record 

i s c o r r e c t . Go ahead. 

MR. FELDEWERT: So t h a t i s what the D i v i s i o n t o l d 

the operators i n 1997, and y o u ' l l see the r e t h a t they then 

awarded the operatorship t o InterCoast. And t h i s was i n a 

s i t u a t i o n , Mr. Examiner, where Yates t e s t i f i e d , as Great 

Western has done today, t h a t they w i l l commence d r i l l i n g of 

a w e l l by the d r i l l i n g deadline t o preserve a farmout 

agreement t h a t InterCoast was concerned about l o s i n g . They 

l e f t the d e s t i n y of t h a t farmout agreement i n InterCoast's 

hands, the looked a t the chronology of events, and 

InterCoast was the p a r t y t h a t f i r s t presented the w e l l , 

t h ey're the ones t h a t worked towards g e t t i n g the w e l l 

p e r m i t t e d . Therefore, they were f i r s t i n l i n e . And 

according t o the D i v i s i o n , they were e n t i t l e d t o a p o o l i n g 

order. 

Now, t h a t was back i n 1997 t h a t the D i v i s i o n 

a r t i c u l a t e d t h a t f i r s t i n time, f i r s t i n l i n e p o s i t i o n . 

And i f you look a t the next order under Tab 1 

[ s i c ] , which i s Order Number 11,566, t h i s was an order t h a t 

was dated A p r i l 17th, 2001, a f t e r a hearing before Examiner 

Stogner. And what y o u ' l l f i n d i n t h i s order, Mr. Examiner, 

i s t h a t the p a r t i e s agreed on everything t h a t ' s l a i d out i n 
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Mr. Catanach's memo. 

And Ocean was the e n t i t y t h a t f i r s t proposed a 

deep gas w e l l i n the subject area. They d i d t h a t i n 

October. Yates d i d n ' t f i l e a competing p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

w i t h the D i v i s i o n or propose a w e l l u n t i l December. 

And what the D i v i s i o n said i n 2 001, i n Paragraph 

(21) on page 7 was the f o l l o w i n g : "Having proposed a deep 

gas w e l l t o the Morrow formation w i t h i n the s u b j e c t 3 55.80-

acre lay-down...spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t f i r s t , Ocean's 

proposal set f o r t h . . . " and they la y out the case numbers 

"...should be approved, and the a p p l i c a t i o n . . . o f 

Yates... should be denied." 

So what the D i v i s i o n has t o l d the operators i n 

1997 and again i n 2001, and I submit i n a l l periods since 

t h a t time, i s t h a t when we have a s i t u a t i o n l i k e t h i s , when 

the p a r t i e s agree on the geology, when there i s no debate 

over the costs, t h a t what the D i v i s i o n w i l l look t o i s who 

f i l e d f i r s t , who d i d the work. 

And t h a t s t r o n g l y favors Mr. A r r i n g t o n here. He 

was out there i n January s t a k i n g a w e l l , when Great Western 

was j u s t d u s t i n g o f f t h e i r geology and r e a c t i n g t o a 

farmout from Yates. Mr. A r r i n g t o n was out t h e r e proposing 

a w e l l i n J u l y when Great Western s t i l l had not acquired 

enough i n f o r m a t i o n t o where they thought they could do 

anything and r e a l l y d i d n ' t express the d e s i r e t o develop 
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t h i s p r o p e rty. So I would submit t h a t when you look a t 

these orders, Mr. A r r i n g t o n should p r e v a i l i n t h i s matter. 

Now, we've also t a l k e d about ownership i n t h i s 

spacing u n i t . I f you look a t the next order t h a t I have i n 

the book, i t ' s Order Number R-10,731-B. I t was a debate 

between Yates and Medallion. 

And i f you look a t Paragraph (24) of t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r order, Mr. Examiner, which i s on page 10, i t 

says, " I n the absence of compelling f a c t o r s such as 

geologic and prospect d i f f e r e n c e s , a b i l i t y t o operate 

p r u d e n t l y , or any reason why one operator would 

economically recover more o i l or gas by v i r t u e of being 

awarded operations than the other, 'working i n t e r e s t 

c o n t r o l , ' as defined and modified by f i n d i n g s 23 (d) and 

(e) should be the c o n t r o l l i n g f a c t o r i n awarding 

operations." 

The working i n t e r e s t ownership here favors 

A r r i n g t o n . The working i n t e r e s t ownership c o n t r o l i n t h i s 

case i s 50-50. 

The next order, D i v i s i o n Order Number R-10,742, 

t h i s was an order entered i n a hearing w i t h Examiner 

Catanach. I t was entered i n 199 6. I f you look a t 

Paragraph (21) on page 6, i t was a dispute between Penwell 

and Santa Fe Energy. I n Paragraph (21) a) i t p o i n t s out 

t h a t "Penwell i n i t i a l l y developed the prospect i n the N/2 
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of Section 28 by f i r s t proposing..." a w e l l . 

Then i n Paragraph (22), t h i s i s what the D i v i s i o n 

t o l d operators: " I n the absence of other compelling 

f a c t o r s , the operatorship of the E/2 of Section 29 should 

be awarded t o the operator who i n i t i a l l y developed the 

prospect, who i n i t i a l l y undertook the r i s k i n v o l v e d i n 

d r i l l i n g . . . " t h a t w e l l t h a t they were t a l k i n g about, 

"...and whose geologic i n t e r p r e t a t i o n appears t o more 

acc u r a t e l y d e p i c t the Strawn r e s e r v o i r u n d e r l y i n g the 

s u b j e c t acreage." 

There's no d i f f e r e n c e i n geology here, but what 

i s of importance here i s t h a t they were l o o k i n g a t the 

operator who i n i t i a l l y went out and t r i e d t o develop t h i s 

prospect. Who d i d the work, who got out t h e r e i n the 

f i e l d , who t r i e d t o get t h i s p r o j e c t on l i n e f i r s t ? That 

was Penwell, and t h a t ' s why Penwell was designated the 

operator. 

F i n a l l y , the l a s t — Well, I have i n here a 

Commission order now, 11,663. That was entered i n November 

of 2001. I t was a dispute over the o r i e n t a t i o n of a 

spacing u n i t , Mr. Examiner. 

What's important here i s , i f you look a t page 5, 

Paragraph 24, here's what the Commission t o l d operators i n 

2001, i n Paragraph 24 on page 5: " I t has long been the 

p r a c t i c e of the Commission t o r e q u i r e p a r t i e s t o show good 
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f a i t h and d i l i g e n c e i n proposing a w e l l t o other i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the u n i t as a p r e r e q u i s i t e of a compulsory 

p o o l i n g order." And they c i t e the O i l and Gas Act. That's 

what the Commission said. 

Now the l a s t order t h a t I have i n t h i s booklet i s 

Order Number R-10,977, and the reason t h a t I have t h a t i n 

t h e r e i s because t h i s was an order entered by the D i v i s i o n 

a f t e r a hearing w i t h Mr. Catanach. I t was dated 1998 but 

c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what the Commission said as i t s long­

standing p r a c t i c e . You w i l l see on page 3 [ s i c ] a t 

Paragraph (3) t h a t the D i v i s i o n dismissed an a p p l i c a t i o n 

t h a t was f i l e d by Redstone because the p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

and the w e l l proposal was f i l e d w i t h i n a week of one 

another. 

So Mr. Examiner, I submit t o you t h a t under the 

Commission precedent, under the precedent set by t h i s 

D i v i s i o n , Great Western has t o come i n and show d i l i g e n c e 

as a p r e r e q u i s i t e t o a c o n s i d e r a t i o n of i t s p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n . And t h a t ' s because you have t o have d i l i g e n c e 

not only t o develop the property but also t o n e g o t i a t e i n 

good f a i t h . 

And I would submit t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n s i n t h i s 

case f a l l w e l l below t h a t requirement. They've he l d t h e i r 

p r o p e r t y since 1973. They d i d nothing, they l e t A r r i n g t o n 

do a l l the work t h i s year. They complain about A r r i n g t o n ' s 
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operations, but they do a b s o l u t e l y nothing t o develop the 

p r o p e r t y themselves. and upon r e c e i v i n g A r r i n g t o n ' s w e l l 

proposal i n J u l y , they do nothing f o r three months. They 

s i t around and do a b s o l u t e l y nothing. 

And they w a i t t i l l the Monday of the p o o l i n g 

hearing i n which t o propose a w e l l , and the day before the 

p o o l i n g hearing i n which t o f i l e a competing p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

I don't t h i n k t h a t t h a t shows d i l i g e n c e , I don't 

t h i n k t h a t shows good f a i t h . But t h a t ' s up f o r the 

D i v i s i o n t o decide. 

A r r i n g t o n ' s E x h i b i t Number 3 lays out a l l i t has 

done t h i s past year t o get t h i s case i n l i n e . And i t 

represents t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s the p a r t y t h a t i s f i r s t i n 

l i n e , a f a c t t h a t the Commission and the D i v i s i o n has 

i n d i c a t e d i s important i n cases l i k e t h i s . 

A r r i n g t o n owns a m a j o r i t y of the working 

i n t e r e s t , another important c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n cases l i k e 

t h i s . A r r i n g t o n i s the p a r t y t h a t has demonstrated the 

d i l i g e n c e t o move t h i s case forward, t o move t h i s prospect 

forward, another important c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

And f i n a l l y , A r r i n g t o n i s the working i n t e r e s t 

owner who's f a c i n g the e x p i r a t i o n of a term assignment. 

They can promise a l l they want, but we don't know what's 

going t o happen. And I submit t o you t h a t A r r i n g t o n has 
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the r i g h t , and i t has earned the r i g h t , t o c o n t r o l i t s 

d e s t i n y w i t h respect t o t h a t term assignment. I t has done 

ev e r y t h i n g i t has been required t o do under the O i l and Gas 

Act and under the D i v i s i o n ' s orders and the Commission 

orders and the precedence of t h i s body t o be e n t i t l e d t o a 

po o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n and be e n t i t l e d t o the p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n — or order t h a t i t has requested i n t h i s case. 

We ask t h a t you grant Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n so t h a t i t can continue i n a t i m e l y f a s h i o n 

w i t h the development of t h i s property t h a t i t i n i t i a t e d way 

back i n January of t h i s year. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Rebuttal, Mr. Owen? 

MR. OWEN: Yes, thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

F i r s t case from the D i v i s i o n t o which Mr. 

Feldewert r e f e r s , Order Number R-10,731, was a D i v i s i o n 

case. I n t h a t case the D i v i s i o n d i d f i n d t h a t the 

ope r a t i o n should go t o InterCoast because InterCoast 

proposed the w e l l f i r s t . 

That case was taken de novo, the Commission 

considered t h a t argument. Turn t o Tab Number 3 t h a t Mr. 

Feldewert provided you. That i s Order Number R-10,731-B. 

On page 7 the Commission recognizes the f a c t t h a t Medallion 

— which, due t o an unfortunate s l i p of the tongue from Mr. 

Carr was re-named — was the new name of InterCoast — 
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Medallion made the same argument t o the Commission. That 

argument was r e j e c t e d . 

Medallion contends t h a t i t i s an experienced 

operator, and due t o the f a c t t h a t i t took the i n i t i a t i v e 

i n developing the prospect and was a moving f o r c e i n 

g e t t i n g the w e l l d r i l l e d , i t should be allowed t o operate 

i t s State of New Mexico 2 0 Well Number 1 and operate the 

east h a l f of Section 20. That's Mr. Feldewert's f i r s t - i n ­

l i n e argument. I t ' s not the basis on which t h i s case was 

denied. 

This case was denied — Or t h i s case was decided 

on another basis e n t i r e l y , working i n t e r e s t c o n t r o l . I t ' s 

i n d i c a t e d on page 10 i n Findings Number (24) and (25). And 

Mr. Feldewert makes much of the working i n t e r e s t c o n t r o l , 

he s t a t e s t h a t A r r i n g t o n c o n t r o l s 50 percent and Great 

Western c o n t r o l s a very small percentage. 

I n f a c t , Mr. Examiner, t o f i g u r e out what we mean 

by working i n t e r e s t c o n t r o l I want t o r e f e r you a few pages 

back t o page 6. On t h a t page 6 under Finding (16) i t 

i n d i c a t e s t h a t Yates Petroleum Company, Yates D r i l l i n g 

Company, Abo Petroleum Company and Myco I n d u s t r i e s 

c o l l e c t i v e l y own 37 percent, and by v i r t u e of a u n i t 

agreement Yates c o n t r o l l e d an a d d i t i o n a l 14.765 percent. 

Working i n t e r e s t c o n t r o l means how much of the 

working i n t e r e s t do you co n t r o l ? I n t h i s case, A r r i n g t o n 
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c o n t r o l s 50 percent now. They d i d n ' t a t the time the 

A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . Great Western c o n t r o l s 50 percent 

by v i r t u e of the j o i n t operating agreement which has been 

executed. That's not an issue i n t h i s case. 

I would also l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t i n Finding 

Number (24) on page 10 of Order Number R-10,731-B, the 

Commission i n r e j e c t i n g Medallion, f o r m e r l y InterCoast's, 

argument about the f i r s t - i n - l i n e argument, s a i d t h a t i n the 

absence of other compelling f a c t o r s — and i t described 

these other compelling f a c t o r s — geologic and prospect 

d i f f e r e n c e s , a b i l i t y t o operate p r u d e n t l y and then other 

t h i n g s which are not at issue i n t h i s case — the geologic 

and prospect d i f f e r e n c e s are not a t issue i n t h i s case; the 

a b i l i t y t o operate prudently i s . 

Mr. Feldewert went through Mr. Catanach's 1995 

memo. He sa i d t h a t a l l the testimony t h a t we presented 

about A r r i n g t o n ' s i n a b i l i t y t o operate p r u d e n t l y i s 

i r r e l e v a n t because i t has t o do w i t h s u b j e c t i v e c a l l s and 

i t has t o do w i t h p r i o r disagreements between the p a r t i e s . 

Mr. Examiner, I submit t h a t pursuant t o Order 

Number R-10,731-B, one of the compelling f a c t o r s before you 

are the p a r t i e s ' a b i l i t y t o operate t h i s p r o p e r t y 

p r u d e n t l y . Great Western presented s i g n i f i c a n t testimony, 

unrebutted testimony, t h a t A r r i n g t o n i s unable t o operate 

t h i s p r o p e r t y prudently. We d i d n ' t present t h a t t o throw 
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mud on A r r i n g t o n and show about these previous 

disagreements t h a t we've had. We d i d i t t o show you t h a t 

A r r i n g t o n i s unable t o operate t h i s w e l l p r u d e n t l y . 

I ' d l i k e t o move b r i e f l y through the other orders 

which Mr. Feldewert presented t o you. 

Under Tab 2, Order Number R-11,566, operations 

were granted t o Ocean. And i n t h a t case, Mr. Examiner, on 

page — Well, what I want t o do w i t h t h a t case, Mr. 

Examiner, i s r e f e r back t o the t r a n s c r i p t from the hearing 

h e l d on October 10th. 

I n t h a t hearing, Mr. Feldewert represented, on 

page 46, l i n e s 18 through 25, t h a t "Our o f f i c e has always 

advised c l i e n t s t h a t i f you receive a w e l l proposal, you 

must take a c t i o n . You can't do anything f o r over two 

months, and then the week of the p o o l i n g hearing suddenly 

f i l e — or submit t o the working i n t e r e s t owners an 

a l t e r n a t i v e plan, come over t o the D i v i s i o n two days before 

the p o o l i n g hearing or the day before the p o o l i n g hearing 

and f i l e a competing p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . " 

He goes on t o say t h a t — on page 48, l i n e s 13 

through 17, he goes on t o say t h a t one of the f a c t o r s i s 

" . . . p r o p e r l y proposed the w e l l i n w r i t i n g t o the working 

i n t e r e s t owners, sought concurrence from them and t i m e l y 

f i l e d a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n a f t e r the necessary, what I've 

always understood t o be, six-week p e r i o d of time t o a l l o w 
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the p a r t i e s t o attempt t o reach an agreement." 

Mr. Feldewert represented t o the D i v i s i o n t h a t i t 

i s h i s o f f i c e ' s p o l i c y t o advise a six-week p e r i o d of time 

before you can f i l e a pool i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , you must propose 

the w e l l s i x weeks before you f i l e a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

I n Order Number R-11,566 Mr. Carr, from Mr. 

Feldewert's o f f i c e , represented Yates. Yates f i l e d i t s 

a p p l i c a t i o n on December 2 0th, 2 000. Yates f i r s t submitted 

i t s proposal on December 27th, 2 000. I t ' s not the p o l i c y 

of Holland and Hart t o recommend a six-week p e r i o d of time. 

This 3 0-day r u l e or six-week r u l e or whatever the r u l e , 

however the r u l e i s characterized, does not e x i s t . There 

i s no p r e r e q u i s i t e p eriod of time which a p a r t y must 

observe between proposing a w e l l and f i l i n g an a p p l i c a t i o n . 

I ' d l i k e t o t u r n t o the t h i r d case again. That 

i s Order Number R-10,7 31-B. We've already t a l k e d about 

t h a t case, Mr. Examiner. I want you t o concentrate very 

c a r e f u l l y on the f a c t t h a t there are other compelling 

f a c t o r s i n t h i s case. That other compelling f a c t o r , as 

s p e c i f i c a l l y enumerated by the Commission i n r e j e c t i n g the 

D i v i s i o n , includes the a b i l i t y of the operator t o operate 

t h i s w e l l p r u d e n t l y . We've presented evidence t h a t Great 

Western can and A r r i n g t o n cannot. 

I ' d l i k e f o r you t o t u r n t o the f o u r t h t a b . Mr. 

Feldewert, several times, said t h a t i t i s t h i s D i v i s i o n ' s 
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p o l i c y , long-standing p o l i c y , t o give operations t o the 

p a r t y t h a t f i l e d f i r s t , the p a r t y t h a t d i d the work. 

Mr. Examiner, you've seen the geologic testimony. 

You've seen t h a t both p a r t i e s have done a l o t of work, a 

l o t of geologic work, a l o t of work g e t t i n g t h i s prospect 

developed. Both p a r t i e s have done the work. I s i t t h i s 

D i v i s i o n ' s p o l i c y t o give operations t o the p a r t y t h a t 

f i l e s f i r s t ? I t ' s not. 

Look a t Number R-10,742 under the f o u r t h tab 

provided by Mr. Feldewert. Mr. Feldewert t u r n s you t o page 

6 of t h a t order. I n Finding Number (21) a) i t says t h a t 

"Penwell i n i t i a l l y developed the prospect... by f i r s t 

proposing t o d r i l l the F.H. '28' State Com Well No. 1". 

I n t h i s case Penwell was not the f i r s t t o f i l e , 

Penwell was not the f i r s t t o propose t h i s w e l l a t issue i n 

t h i s case. I want you t o t u r n t o page number 4. 

The f i r s t f u l l paragraph says t h a t "By l e t t e r 

dated September 25, 1996..." Santa Fe proposed the w e l l . 

The next paragraph says t h a t "By l e t t e r dated 

October 1, 1996..." Penwell proposed the w e l l . 

Santa Fe proposed the w e l l f i r s t , Mr. Examiner. 

The next f u l l paragraph says t h a t two weeks 

l a t e r , not s i x weeks or 30 days, Penwell f i l e d a compulsory 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

The next f u l l paragraph says t h a t on October 
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24th, 1996, Santa Fe f i l e d i t s compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n . Penwell, who proposed the w e l l second and 

f i l e d i t s compulsory poo l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n second — 

A c t u a l l y , i t d i d f i l e i t s compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

f i r s t . Penwell proposed the w e l l second. I t ' s not whoever 

happens t o get i n l i n e here who's going t o p r e v a i l i n every 

case. The question i s , are there other compelling f a c t o r s ? 

And i n f a c t the D i v i s i o n recognizes t h a t i n 

Finding Number 22 on page 7. " I n the absence of other 

compelling f a c t o r s . . . " i t says t h a t because Penwell f i r s t 

developed the prospect Penwell should be designated the 

operator. 

Mr. Examiner, other compelling f a c t o r s are a t 

issue i n t h i s case, i n c l u d i n g the s p e c i f i c other compelling 

f a c t o r of A r r i n g t o n ' s i n a b i l i t y t o p r u d e n t l y operate t h i s 

p r o p e r t y . 

The next case i s Order Number R-11,663-C, and 

t h a t was entered on December 5th, 2 001. I'm not sure q u i t e 

why Mr. Feldewert brought t h i s before you, because t h i s 

case was decided on geologic f a c t o r s . I t had nothing t o do 

w i t h who proposed the w e l l f i r s t , i t had nothing t o do w i t h 

who held a m a j o r i t y i n t e r e s t . I t had t o do w i t h geologic 

f a c t o r s . That's i n d i c a t e d i n Finding Number 19 on page 4. 

But what I would p o i n t you t o , Mr. Examiner, i s 

Finding Number 25 on page 5. The Commission has not set 
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out s p e c i f i c standards f o r e s t a b l i s h i n g what s t i l l 

c o n s t i t u t e s good f a i t h and d i l i g e n c e , p r e f e r r i n g t o address 

these issues on a case-by-case basis. There's no f i r s t - i n ­

l i n e r u l e . You need t o decide these cases on a case-by-

case basis. 

The f i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n before you, Mr. Examiner, 

or the f i n a l order, i s Order Number R-10,977, entered i n 

1998. I n t h a t case, Redstone's a p p l i c a t i o n was dismissed 

because Redstone f i l e d i t s a p p l i c a t i o n before they proposed 

the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l . 

We've t a l k e d about whether i t i s t h i s D i v i s i o n ' s 

p o l i c y t o r e q u i r e the f i l i n g of an — the s u b m i t t i n g of a 

proposal before the f i l i n g of an a p p l i c a t i o n . I t ' s not. 

But even i f i t i s , Great Western submitted i t s proposal 

before i t f i l e d i t s a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case. I t ' s not an 

issue. This order i s not at issue i n t h i s case. 

What i s a t issue i s a par t y ' s g o o d - f a i t h 

n e g o t i a t i o n s . What i s a t issue i s a par t y ' s w i l l i n g n e s s t o 

reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement. What i s a t issue i s 

A r r i n g t o n ' s a b i l i t y t o operate p r u d e n t l y . 

Great Western has submitted the only proposals t o 

reach v o l u n t a r y agreement. Yes, Great Western i s u n w i l l i n g 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l i n which A r r i n g t o n i s the 

operator. That doesn't mean t h a t ' s the only o p t i o n f o r 

v o l u n t a r y agreement. There are farmout o p t i o n s , t h e r e are 
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options where Great Western would operate, there are 

options where A r r i n g t o n would d r i l l and Great Western would 

operate. There are a l l kinds of options. And Great 

Western has proposed those options t o A r r i n g t o n . A r r i n g t o n 

has refused t o negotiate. 

A r r i n g t o n d i d n ' t even own an i n t e r e s t when i t 

f i l e d i t s A p p l i c a t i o n . We're t a l k i n g about good f a i t h and 

d i l i g e n c e . A r r i n g t o n was not d i l i g e n t i n a c q u i r i n g i t s 

i n t e r e s t before i t f i l e s an A p p l i c a t i o n . Instead, i t comes 

before the D i v i s i o n and makes a f a l s e statement, t h a t i t 

does own a working i n t e r e s t , when i t f i l e s i t s A p p l i c a t i o n . 

I t ' s not good f a i t h , i t ' s not d i l i g e n t . 

And f i n a l l y , Mr. Examiner, don't discount the 

testimony t h a t ' s before you about the p a r t i e s ' r e l a t i v e 

a b i l i t i e s t o d i l i g e n t l y and prudently d r i l l and operate 

t h i s w e l l . Great Western i s a very experienced operator 

w i t h s i g n i f i c a n t experience i n the Permian Basin, has the 

experience and the personnel on hand t o d r i l l and operate 

t h i s w e l l i n a prudent manner. A r r i n g t o n does not. 

We request t h a t you dismiss A r r i n g t o n ' s 

A p p l i c a t i o n and enter an order naming Great Western 

operator of t h i s w e l l . 

Thank you. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, i f I may, two 

t h i n g s . 
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One, I think we have some — a decision that has 

t o be made by the D i v i s i o n here, and t h a t i s , are we going 

t o t u r n these compulsory poo l i n g cases i n t o o perator-

bashing? Are we supposed t o come i n here and s t a r t bashing 

the other operators over the head, over t h e i r s u b j e c t i v e 

judgment c a l l s and t h e i r a b i l i t y t o operate a well? That 

seems t o me t h a t what they are proposing, because t h a t i s 

the only compelling f a c t o r t h a t they have put f o r t h , i n 

co n t r a s t t o what the D i v i s i o n has always recognized as the 

appro p r i a t e f a c t o r s . 

Secondly, I'm not sure what Mr. Owen i s 

repr e s e n t i n g t o the D i v i s i o n , because i n h i s November 6th 

l e t t e r t o the D i v i s i o n he referenced Order R-10,731, and he 

sai d t h a t i n other words, the D i v i s i o n — 

(B u i l d i n g alarm began t o sound.) 

MR. FELDEWERT: — endorsed the f i r s t - i n - l i n e 

f a c t o r as the only determining f a c t o r when i t viewed a l l 

the other f a c t o r s as equal. 

So I don't — You know, I'm not saying t h a t i s 

the only f a c t o r . What I'm saying i s t h a t good f a i t h and 

d i l i g e n c e have t o be considered, and I t h i n k we're t r y i n g 

t o go down the path here of t u r n i n g these cases i n t o 

operator-bashing r a t h e r than the f a c t o r s t h a t the D i v i s i o n 

introduced from the Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

139 

MR. OWEN: Just f o r the record, I don't t h i n k the 

alarm has anything t o do w i t h the v e r a c i t y of Mr. 

Feldewert's statements. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I agree w i t h t h a t . I t h i n k 

we're going t o have t o probably respect the alarm. 

I f there's nothing f u r t h e r , Cases Number 12,942 

and 12,956 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

2:05 p.m.) 

* * * 

•5 of Case No. 

toaf the foregone ft 
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